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THE PROBLEM OF DRUG ABUSE

WEDNESDAY, APRIL 22, 1981

Housk oF REPRESENTATIVES,
SeLEcT COMMITTEE ON N ARCOTICS ABUSE AND CONTROL
Los Angeles Cahf

The committee met, pursuant to notice, at 9 a.m., in the Customs
Courtroom, Los Angeles Calif., Hon. Leo C. Zeferetti (chairman of
the Select Committee) pres1d1ng

Present: Representatives Tom Railsback, Benjamin A. Gﬂman,
Robert K. Dornan, and Lawrence J. DeNardls

Staff present: Patrick L. Carpentier, chief counsel; Roscoe I.
Starek III, minority counsel; and John W. Peploe, chief of security/
investigator.

Mr. ZerFereTTL. Good morning, ladies and gentlemen.

We are today opening our hearing in Los Angeles, which is part
of a series of hearings held by our committee throughout the
United States concerning the problem of drug abuse. Our hearings
are intended not only to inform us to assist in our legislative
responsibilities on this most important subject, but also equally
important, promote an awareness of the problem and develop ini-
tiatives and programs to attack the problem.

I want to state at the outset of this hearing—and I am stating
this for the record—on behalf of my colleagues on the committee
who are with me today and all members of our committee, we
categorically and emphatically deny the many unfair allegations
which have appeared in the press that the Select Committee-is
engaged in some sort of a witch hunt or inquisition. This is simply
not true. I do not want to dwell on this issue any longer than is
necessary. I simply want to allow the record to speak for itself. The
next 2 days will demonstrate that the Select Committee has come
to California not to persecute but to ask for help, not to“indict or
interroggts, but to seek a partnership in an effort to address a vital
health and welfare issue.

We recognize that no professions or any wa % of life are totally

immune from the temptation and the illness of substance abuse,-

and we have come to the entertamment industry not to point our
finger but to hold out our hand in an offer, a genume offer, of

“partnership.

When the Select Committee was reestablished this year, it was
the expressed mandate of the congressional leadership that one of
our most important functions would be to move beyond the tradi-
tional bounds of a congressional oversight and investigative com-
mittee. Substance abuse is a social problem that reaches into every

ethnic group and every socio-economic class in our society. Drug

abuse is a dlsease which threatens the physical and emotional
: )




health_ of our fellow citizens in every walk of life. The Select
Committee has been in a unique position of looking at the sub-
stance abuse picture from a very wide perspective. We have trav-
eled the World,.tall_nng with heads of state about the issues of illicit
substapce cultivation and production. We have met with repre-
sentatives of law enforcement agencies, both in this Nation and
._abroaq, and gained a well-informed perspective of the problems of
interdicting traffickers. We have spent long hours with treatment,
rehabilitation, and prevention professionals at all levels of govern-
ment in an attempt to better understand the very difficult nature
of mending the lives which drugs threaten to shatier.

With this very rich perspective on the nature and extent of the
drug problem, we have been asked by the Congress to come back to
them in 18 months with proposals on the nature and extent of the
drug problem, we have been asked by the Congress to come back to
them in.18 months with proposals which speak to the multidimen-
sional nature of the problem. ’

We are to move beyond the governmental perspective and seek
the advice and guidance of many sectors of our society, as to how
the enormous problems of substance abuse may best be addressed
and someday resolved. Today’s hearing will focus on an assessment
of the nature and extent of the substance abuse problem in this’
area of the Nation. This is a necessary and proper step which seeks
to establish a data base, a groundwork, for this particular set of
hearlngs. We shall hear from law enforcement and criminal justice
I;g‘gfisslonals from many levels of Federal, State, and local govern-

nt.

We shall assess the particular problems encountered in enforcing
substance abuse laws in this area. We shall also be assessing the
nature of drug smuggling, of particular types of substances used in
this area, of the interaction among various law enforcement agen-
cies as they strive toward the accomplishment, of their respective
gé:slons, and of the particular problems encountered by local agen-

At tomorrow’s hearing, we will receive the testimony f )
bers of the entertainment industry who share our conczrlrfoa?s1 igi ?sllllle
gravity of the drug problem in our Nation and are devoted to doing
:ﬁme{;gl?g abo’Wl}t 1t..1’11‘lfsehcitizens have decided to not remain on

e sidelines. We will be hearin i
to‘t]:vgmbat o o g about their concerns and efforts

e are here to help, and we are here to get help in our mission
We want to extend our heartfelt thanks gto thep witn:ssg;lsf%grr;
whom we shall be hearing. They have demonstrated, by their ap-
pearance before this committee, their concern over the issue of
substanc_e abuse and their willingness to roll up their sleeves and
%g;ld their valuable assistance to the attack on drug abuse in Amer-

Before we begin testimony, my colleagues may wi
opening remarks, and then Mayory Bradle;)g,, who hgs Vlivls;}: ;J’gacl,'rilc')ali{se3
%ﬁ;ﬂﬁﬁg to take {:{mie from his.}ll)usy schedule, will make a few

ory remarks to open our i
lltliir. %ailsback. ? Sarng
 Mr. RaILSBACK. Mr. Chairman, I wonder if I might vield
distinguished Congressman from California, who I Eghinl)cuhlgs t;'(:e;lli;

\
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played a major role in bringing these hearings to his State. I would
like to yield to my colleague, Bob Dornan.

Mr. Dornan. I thank the distinguished ranking minority
member of the committee, Mr. Railsback of Illinois, for his courte-
sy. Thank you, Tom.

Mr. Chairman, I appreciate your extending a hand to our com-
munity here in Los Angeles, and really to the whole Southwestern
United States, because from the day we first started discussing this
visit out here over 3 years ago under the chairmanship of the
distinguished former Congressman from New York, Mr. Wolff, the
idea of coming to southern California was special. - ‘

We know that last year, in 1980, 6,900 airplanes entered the
Southern United States through our southern region, and through
our southwestern region. e know the extent of trafficking coming
in through our California ports. The Coast Guard is overburdened
at sea. The Treasury Department, through its Customs operations,
is dealing with a few obsolete airplanes of vintage 20 years old or
more. They are barely interdicting 10 percent of what is coming
into the United States. :

There have been hearings in Florida. I know we will go back to

your own beleaguered area of New York, to discuss the drug prob-
lem there. It was only natural we would come to southern Califor-
nia. The friendly hand that you extended to the communications
industry here, particularly to what is known generically as the
Hollywood community, was most gracious, and I happen to agree
with the Herald Examiner that your hand was bitten or at least
nibbled upon, I think that after these 2 days of hearings, that
southern California and Los Angeles will be glad thut the commit-
tee was here, and will be glad that you have taken the committee’s
time to come here and take testimony.
I just wanted to point out the overwhelming extent of narcotics
abuse throughout the free world. The Communist world may have
their problems with vodka, but there is no question they are sitting
back pointing a finger at us, claiming that we are a decadent,
dying society in the West. Generally, when they tick off the things
that are ripping us apart, they mention narcotics abuse, particular-
ly among young people as the No. 1 indicator that the tide of the
future is with them, and that we are finished as a society.

I have just come back from a five-nation trip, Mr. Chairman, to
Central America. I met with drug enforcement officials in Costa
Rica. They told me that they are unable to even keep track of the
number of aircraft that are transshipping drugs through Costa
‘Rica. About the only nations that don’t have a problem down there
are those that are under immediate Communist insurgency.

I picked up in Central America an international edition of News-
week magazine. Sometimes their cover is different than our cover.
This one has as its title “The Booming Drug Trade.” It has a cut
out of South America, and someone in the radical chic fashion
snorting cocaine by using a rolled $100 bill, snorting a line of
cocaine, laid across the nation of Bolivia. This is because Bolivia

has now seen tin—a traditional product there for almost a cen-
tury—slip to the No. 2 export. The government of Bolivia, a friend-
ly government of the United States, has fallen in a coup that it
appears was financed by illegal narcotics money.




I just want to read a couple of quotes from this “Booming Drug
Trade” article by Newsweek magazine:

“The narcotics merchants of the world have entered a new era,
one that can accurately be called high times.” Some people in the
audience know that this is also the title of a magazine published in
the United States that pushes narcotics—in every sense of the
word “push.”

In Latin America an unprecedented cocaine boom is being built on the profits of
the marihuana trade and on the neglect and connivance of governments.

In Iran and Afghanistan, the chaos of revolution and war has stymied interna-

tional attempts to control the drug traffic, and has released a flood of cheap heroin
on Europe.

“Hampered by miniscule budgets and by outdated legislation,”
this being one of the reasons our committee is traveling across the
United States “police cannot even begin to cope.” “We are only
stopping about a tenth of the stuff that comes through,” admits an
Interpol police agent in Paris. “The picture is grim.”

The article goes on to say that:

Cocaine, soaring now, is the perfect drug to produce and to smuggle as it can be
refined in a simple manner—a three-step process—significantly easier to hide than
marihuana. Most Latin American cocaine ends up in the hands of Americans, but
the nations of Western Europe, which once shrugged off the drug trade as an
American problem, have lately been hit by a major onslaught of heroin, most of it
grown and now processed in the troubled areas of Afghanistan.

A war doesn’t seem to interfere with the drug trafficking—“it
passes through Iran and northern Pakistan. The heroin then goes
to Turkey, and on through Mafia facilities in Sicily. _

Organized crime, the Mafia home base of Sicily, is making more money than it
ever did during prohibition or the beginning of an organized crime system that still
strangles much of American life. The facilities then are often run by French and
Corsican chemists and gangland survivors of the severed French Connection.

There is only one bright page in. all of this worldwide narcotics problem—our
sister nation to the south, Mexico, which has all but rooted out its marihuana trade,
f}3aiicrushed most of the heroin trade at a great loss of life among its soldiers in the

ield.

“Aside from that one story of success,” returning to the article,
“t{le gl’rug dilemma is one that nobody in the world knows how to
solve.

That is why we are here. That is why you extended a request to
the communications industry here to help. We cannot desperately
throw up our hands and say that it is an insoluble problem.

The rewards of the Latin American cocaine boom already are overwhelming. In
deep and primitive jungles, prosperous drug towns are blanketed by color television
antennas and $100,000 Mercedes sedans, We are unfortunately losing the war, a
U.S. drug agent has said in Bogota, Colombia. Bogota now sees its food production
falling off. :

We are importing rice, a Bolivian official says, where they used to be a supporter,

because the cocaine fields are overrunning their food products. It has replaced tin as
Bolivia’s leading export.

Colombia now supports a $4 billion drug industry of laboratories
and trafficking. Cocaine is not principally grown there as we know,
but in Bolivia and Peru. In Bolivia it is a $1.6 billion industry.

In the once luxurious resort island of Jamaica, marihuana is a
$1.1 billion industry. Just as a reference, every other export or
industry put together doesn’t equal this. They only make $200
million off tourism. And bauxite—from which we draw the alumi-
num for our airplanes—is only $230 million.

b
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In Peru, oil is still barely ahead of narcotics, but this year the
$800 million drug industry in Peru will push ahead to a billion
dollars, making oil the second product there.

The dimensions of the problem are absolutely staggering. Some
of us have traveled on this committee to northern Burma, where
we were literally threatened by drug warlords—an army of 600
people, attempting to interdict our helicopters and kill three Con-
gressmen.

We felt hopeful that things had turned the corner in the Golden
Triangle of Laos, Burma, and Thailand, because they had a
drought for 2 years. They have now had a bumper crop. The
Golden Triangle is now competing without the Golden Crescent of
Afghanistan, North Pakistan, and Iran. Revolutions don’t stand in
the way of this trafficking. Warfare, and the crush by Soviet troops
of Afghanistan, has not even dented the trade. As a matter of fact,
as the Newsweek article points out, it has helped the trade.

To see Latin American governments, heads of state, pleading
with visiting Congressmen to help do something about the demand
side of the problem while they work on the supply side of the
problem is one reason why this committee naturally gravitates to
the southern areas of our country and the major metropolitan
areas of Mr. Railsback’s Chicago, or Mr. Zeferetti’s New York area.

I am proud to have the committee here. I think this is going to
be a constructive 2 days. I hope that we can focus—to use a
Hollywood term, “the white hot arc light of public opinion,” upon

this disastrous problem, not only to save the next generation of*

young Americans, but to save the very stability of governments in
the free world. : ;

I am proud to have served on this committee for all of my tenure
in the House, and I look forward to a positive response from the
citizenry of southern California and from the press community in
this city about what our real objectives are.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman. @

Mr. ZerererTi. Thank you, Mr. Dornan. Mr. Railsback.

Mr. RaiLsBack. Mr. Chairman, very briefly I would like to give
you my view. As I understand it, the mandate of this committee, is
not—and I repeat—not to be a group of independent investigators
trying to develop cases against particular individuals or for that
nllatter, particular parts of the country. I want to make that very
clear.

The charter we have, as I understand it, is to try to develop a
rational, feasible, national drug policy. We really are here at the
suggestion, frankly, of some in the entertainment industry. I want
to make one comment about that. I was quoted in People magazine
in a rather disparaging reference to Cathy Lee Crosby, and I want
to publicly say for the record, that in my opinion Cathy Lee Crosby
has been one individual who has dedicated herself to trying to find
constructive solutions. I made one reference that ‘it was not going
to be a Cathy Lee Crosby production.” That reference was made
because there were many, many other celebrities that wanted to
appear and wanted to be helpful. ' :

I personally feel very badly about this misconception that we are
somehow going to try to single out one part of the country. Frank-
ly, I agree with the chairman’s remarks, that we are going to have

omeacina
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to go to Miami, to New York, to Chlcago where we have brown
heroin problems. :

But the reason we are here today, and I am going to reinforce
what has been said: we are looking for help. Again, our mandate is
to try to come up with a rational national policy. I am absolutely
convinced that the Federal Government cannot even make a dent
in the problem, nor for that matter, can a mayor of a city or a local
police department. It is going to take effort on the part of all
Americans. v

We have to, I think, educate our fellow citizens as to the magni-
tude and scope of the problem. And that is why we are pleased to
be here today. I look forward to hearing from the law enforcement
officers and the city officials today. And I look forward to hearing
those celebrities—that may even be at some slight risk of being
condemned by some of their colleagues—who are going to have the
courage to appear and testify tomorrow.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. ZerereTTL. Thank you, Mr. Raﬂsback

Mr. Gilman.

Mr. GiLMAN. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

I want to commend the gentleman from New York, our chair-
man, Mr. Zeferetti, and the gentleman from California, Mr.
Dornan, for arranging this hearing -in this part of the country.

Certainly no State, and no country is unique in the drug prob-
lem. It is a worldwide problem, a problem that affects every part of
our Nation, and affects almost every country in the world today.

The purpose of our being here is to evaluate and define the
problem, to try to help in our effort to develop an effective national

program, a national program that can coordinate our enforcement
efforts, that can educate the public to the seriousness of the prob-
lem, to help eradicate the major drug trafficking that you have
heard about already this morning.

I think it is unfortunate that there has been some misinterpreta-
tion and'misunderstanding of the objectives of this committee. We
are not a criminal investigating body, we are not here to prosecute
or to persecute, but we are here seeking facts and seeking coopera-
tion and seeking input, in trying to develop a more effective na-
tional program. And I hope that with the cooperation of our local
officials, with the cooperation of the motion picture industry—
which we hope would become a partner with us in our effort to
attempt to properly publicize the need for eradicating this serious
problem—it will develop as a result of this hearmg

This committee is not a new committee. It is a committee that '

has been in existence since 1976, We have gone to every part of the
world in our effort to help stem the flow of narcotics here and
abroad. We have gone into the drug producing areas, as Mr.
Dornan has said. We have been in every international forum. We
have been on our borders with our own agents, seeking out their
problems, and we have attempted in the Congress to encourage
legislation that will make our effort more effective.

I hope we will approach this hearing in California, the initial
hearings in the 97th session, in that kind of a cooperative spirit, a
spirit of trying to find ways that our Federal Government can be
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useful in eradicating this problem, in trying to find a solution to
the growing drug crisis.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. ZerErReTTI. Thank you, Mr. Gilman. Mr. DeNardis.

Mr. DENARDIS. Mr. (‘halrman, I want to thank you for the oppor-
tunity to participate in these hearings through which I believe we
can learn a gcod deal more about the subject matter at hand, so
that we can do our job in a more well informed manner.

I think that the information that will be made available to us
this week, through personal contacts with professionals in the field,
in all aspects of interdiction, enforcement, education and treat-
ment, will be particularly valuable to new members of the commit-
tee, like myself. I am looking forward to learning from the people
who really serve in the front lines, the forefront of this country’s
efforts to stem the tide of narcotics abuse, and especially drug
{;rafﬁckmg, which is certainly the core of much of our crime prob-
em

I want to emphasize another aspect of these hearings that has
not received very much attention, and which I think will come to
light during the testimony today. That is, that drug abuse, or the
enforcement of drug problems, is a classic problem in intergovern-
mental relations. Federal, State, and local authorities need to coop-
erate closely, need to have very effective interaction in order to
carry out their respective enforcement respons1b111t1es, and we are
going to see today Just how well that is working in this pait of the
country,

My partlcular interest in the entertainment industry—to look at
a second aspect of this—is to find out how and if they can serve our
cause by working with us to present a positive picture to our young
and impressionable citizens in order to lessen the use of drugs. The
enormous power of the entertainment industry should be devoted
to changing and improving attitudes and opinions about drug use,
and I say that if today the public image of the entertainment
industry, insofar as drug abuse is concerned, is a negative one, we
are, I believe, offering the industry an opportunity to change that
perception, and to participate in what should be a nationwide
endeavor to bring a halt to the abuse, trafficking, and glamour that
surrounds the narcotics industry.

I invite their participation. I hope that some of them will have a
change of mind ‘and appear here tomorrow, or appear with us
informally before our visit concludes this week. We invite them to
do that. I look forward to working with them as well as all con-
cerned citizens and groups in what I believe is truly the fight of the
century in our Nation.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. ZeFerETTI. Thank you, Mr. DeNardis.

At this time, I would like to call to the witness table Hon, Tom
Bradley, the mayor of the city of Los Angeles.

Mr. Mayor, before you begin, Just let me say thank you, thank
you for taking the time out from your busy schedule to join with us
today in our effort. )
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TESTIMONY OF HON. TOM BRADLEY, MAYOR OF LOS ANGELES

Mr. BrapLEY. Mr. Chairman, members of the committee, I am
delighted to welcome you to Los Angeles for the purpose of these
hearings, to address what I think is an important issue, one which
affects not only this community but the entire Nation.

I have been pleased to hear from members of this committee that
you came not to single out a single industry, nor a single group of
people. You came rather to deal with the total ramification of the
‘narcotics and drug abuse problem in this Nation, and it does affect
all of us, every economic group, every age group, every racial and
ethnic group is affected, is concerned.

So if we are to be effective in our efforts to deal with this blight
on our society, we are going to have to deal with the total problem
in all of its aspects. : .

Several weeks ago, in connection with the crime problem here in
the city of Los Angeles, I called together a panel of criminologists
and psychiatrists, to deal with what were called the root causes of
crime, and to see if they could tell us, in their experience, what
relevant issues we are to be addressing.

It was interesting to note that almost without exception they
said that drug abuse and alcohol abuse were principal among the
points that led to violent crime in our society. I think we must not
overloox that factor. There have been some who have shown
through statistical research that high incidence of crime is drug
related. Some have even suggested that 60 percent of the major
crime committed in our community is related to the use of drugs.
Anyone; who is an abuser, an addict, must find the resources to
maintain that habit, and no one in an ordinary walk of life can
make enough money to do so, so they must turn ‘to crime as.a
means of securing that inordinate amount of money.
~ Drug abuse is a problem which knows no bounds in terms of
income, and regrettably, it knows no bounds to age. We have
learned, for example, that 20 percent of the junior high school
students have reported usage of one or more drugs. Forty-three
percent of our senior high school students have reported use of
more thad a single drug; 28 percent increase in incidence of arrests
for narcotics have occurred on our campuses, high school after high
school, across the city. =

Seizures by law enforcement officers of narcotics such as cocaine,
and marihuana, demonstrate the large popularity of these drugs.
The one time so-called “rich man’s drug,” is rapidly becoming the
drug of choice among all abusers, and economics is the enly factor
restricting the spread of use among new initiates. Seizure 'of co-
c;u}r;sz has increased noticably in Los Angeles, with no relief in
sight. ‘ '

The L.os Angeles Police Department reports that seizures of PCP
have increased since 1977 by 500 percent. One of the large facts
about PCP is that it is the source of violence, urncontrollable vio-
lence, to the user or to the police officers who attempt to appre-
hend them, or to innocent victims who may be in the vicinity.

Marihuana continues to be that drug which is most used by all
segments of the population and the State of California. is becoming

the top marihuana producer in the United States. In fact, they:

have told us that marihuana is the biggest cash crop in this State.
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That is a large statistic, but you, the members of this committee,
know it well, and you know it from your studies of the internation-
al problem. :

It is obvious that we are living in a drug-oriented society, and it
is necessary for us to make the public aware of the facts that any
drug use can lead to drug abuse. Peer pressure on our children in
school can lead to drug abuse, and the glamorizing of the narcotics
use by the news accounts reported by the media involving enter-
tainment celebrities, or sports figures who are heroes in the eyes of
the average youngster, add to this problem.

I think we need to look to the solutions, to see what we can do to
reverse this trend. These same heroes, I think, can be effective in
turning these youngsters away from the use of drugs and narcotics,
and I hope that through these hearings, we can emphasize that
particular problem. ‘

There are several things that I think must be done, can be done.
We must initiate a strong prevention program, try to reach the
youngsters at the earliest possible age. We must engage in what I
would call interagency enforcement, if we are to be effective. No
single agency, city, county, State, or Federal, can do it alone. It is
going to take the combined efforts of us all if we are to be effective
in the apprehension and the enforcement of narcotics trafficking.

The third element is that of treatment. The National Institute on
Drug Abuse has done a crucial arnd important job. I know there is a
concern about continued funding for their efforts. I would hope
that this committee would give its attention to that particular
problem. ' ~ .

I applaud the efforts of this committee. I wish you well in your
efforts, because this is a problem which plagues this Nation. It saps
our strength, it destroys our young people. And unless we can
engage in an effective program of interdiction of the flow of narcot-
ics in this country, and then to prevent its spread and use here
locally in this community and every community across this Nation,
I daresay that our society is going to be in trouble. So I think that
your efforts, through these hearings, not just here, but across the
Nation, can be very effective in this effort. I applaud you and
thank you for coming to Los Angeles. .

Mr. ZerereTTI. Thank you, Mr. Mayor.

If I may, as a part of your testimony, you hit right on the target
what the objectives of what this committee is trying to accomplish.

We think that your great city has the material and has the
facilities to produce the kind of expertise and technical assistance
that could provide us with that public awareness factor. We think

that your great city has the talent that has the ability to reach out

and have people listen to what they have to say. And it is in that
vein and in that effort that we came out here looking for that kind
of assistance—not in the area of rnaking a motion picture, if I

 might, but in the area of using the technology and the facilities

that they have inbred to produce the kind of possible identity and
programs and the kinds of techniques that -might be or might have
an impact on especially our young people.

More importantly, out here you have the nucleus of some young
people who have taken it upon themselves through some parental
kind of groups that have sprung up—and not only here I might say
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but throughout ‘the country—but here they are very, very I would
say, active, and very, very enthusiastically involved, and they have
visited us in Washington. These young people are saying the same
thing as their parents are saying—help us, create something, join
with us so that we don’t have this peer pressure, so that we can
lend ourselves to society as a whole. .

_So I compliment you on your statement because you are hitting
right at the core of what we were trying to do out here. And again
it is our p}eagure. to be here. We just want to be able to do that
kind of effective job. We want to be able to utilize at best those
people that have the talent, those people that have the following,
and I mlght add, and whether it be the entertainment industry,
whether it be the sports industry, or whether it be industry in
general that suffers today because of drug or alcohol related kind
of problems, produces less productivity, that produces more prob-
lems and less public service for our citizens. ~

So it is really in that effort that we are here today, and we offer
that hand to you, Mr. Mayor, also and saying to you how best can
zifle thelp, you lend us your expertise, too, and we will respond to

at.

Do my colleagues on the committee have anything?

Mr. RaLsBack. I have no questions. I thank the mayecr.

Mr. ZerEreTTI. Mr. Dornan. : :

Mr. DORNAN..MI'. Mayor, it is a particular honor to open up our
2 days of hearmgs with someone as distinguished as vourself. Is
there any mayor in the United States that has served longer than
your 8 years of tenure? It is nice to be able to ask you that after
you just won with such a landslide victory to serve, God willing, 12
years. Are there any mayors serving longer than 8 years? o

Mr. BraDLEY. Yes, many of my colleagues have served. I know of
one man who served over 40 years as mayor,

Mr. DorNaAN. I mean currently serving?

Mr. BRADLEY. Yes.

Mr. D;ORNANy. I know you will always take a leading role at the
conventions of mayors across the United States. When you love
people, - you should love them even more when they are in trouble.
ﬁggorllfe yolli. lﬁve a city, you lowlzle it more when it is in trouble.

who knows you perso
cit% on %w e you personally, knows how Ir}pch you love our

ou have walked its streets as a rookie co , rode its car

sergeant in the L.A. Police Department, and I;dministered‘ iiS: 22 ‘2
p_ohqe heut_enant._ You have donated just about your entire adult
life to public service in this great city, and yet we hear this city we
love described as the leading capital city of, rape on the entire
planet. And then we hear that it is closing fastest on violent
crimes, particularly those attributable—as you - pointed out—to
PCP. We know that we are called the cocaine capital of the United
agiﬁegh ghi marlhgana tca-pii;:iil, and sometimes we even alternate

chairman’s metropoli ‘ ' '
le%gingi; o prma, opolitan area as to yvhether or not we are

Ve love this city. What are we going to do to get a ha

organizing all of our populace to rg:alizegizhat there %s no suclllld%ﬁigg
gﬁi rt;l:? recreational use of drugs, that drug abuse is not a victimless

%
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The police department is constantly besieged with this. It is
killing people and families on our highways. Marihuana accounts
for 15 percent of the death toll of fatal accidents; liquor 50 percent
of the death toll. What are we going to do to stop the increase in
violent crime, rape, burglary, and robbery, that is drug related?

Mr. BrADLEY. It is going to take the combined efforts of our law
enforcement agencies, our schools, our institutions which are as-
signed the responsibility of teaching, training our young people. I
think the most critical element is a kind of educational program
that will involve those best able to reach the young people, and I
know how influenced they are by their heroes, whether they be in
the sports world or prominent in some other capacity. They have
an enormous influence on these young people, and more and more
we are seeing that kind of exercise of responsible behavior by
celebrities in these fields, and they are coming forward and offer-
ing their help. I think that is going to continue.

The hearings that you are conducting, I think will focus on that
need. And it is my hope that we can demonstrate the use of our
resources here, and we do have them in great amounts, and I
commit to you our efforts here in the city to join with this commit-
tee and with the Nation in tackling this problem. It is the only way
we are going to do it, working at it together. ’

Mr. DorNnan. Mr. Mayor, wouldn’t you say, given your own lead-
ership role in trying to do something in a positive way, that Los
Angeles and New York have a particular advantage over the rest
of the country because the communications industry is basically
centered in both these areas, from news to live television, to situa-
tion television, prime time shows. Between these two areas, and
given our leading sports teams in these two areas, we really could
set an example for the rest of the country by utilizing the talents
of these men and women who are real models for our youth, and
starting a virtual campaign—I resist saying war, because war has
been overused in every field of public service since we are always
warring on something. But this is war, a bloody war, with as high a
death toll across the free world as most combat situations. But
don’t we have ,this advantage in New.York and Los Angeles?

Mr. 'BrapLEY. That is true. In these two metropolitan areas I
think.we have more respurces, more talent, more ability than
anywhere in the country and we ought to use'it. I think your
message and ours ought to be let’s call on them. :
_.Mr. DorNAN. Thank you for your statements, Mr. Mayor.

''Mr. ZEFERETTL. Mr. Gilman. o .

Mr. GiLmAN. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. Mayor, we welcome your thoughtful presentation. As you
talked, I was curious as to whether or not you had taken advantage
of some of these resources here and developed any program locally
to bring in the communications industry, and some of the commu-

. nity leaders in an initiative to undertake an effective drug educa-

tion and prevention program? ,.

Mr. Brapiey. We have made use of some of the sports figures
who have been involved in some of our youth programs, and some
of our efforts to inform and to educate our young people. :

We have called upon the entertainment media to give us a hand

in producing films.
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Mr. GiLmMAN. Have they done that,-mayor? Have they cooperated
with you?

Mr. BraprLEy. So far, no one has come up with the ideal way of
presenting this story. They have produced films that are used in
the schools, but they are not very effective, because they simply
are not yet sophisticated enough to reach the youngster with the
kind of impact that we need.

Mr. Giman. You have called on the industry to do this sort of
thing, mayor? .

Mr. BRADLEY. Yes, we and the schools have done that.

Mr. GizmaN. You-have met with them and attempted to work
out some sort of a program?

Mr. BRADLEY. Yes.

Mr. GiLmaN. And they still have not been able to develop any?

Mr. BrabLEY. They are trying. But they have not yet come up
with the exact formula for.it.

Mr. GiuMAN. Does the city of Los Angeles have any agency or
any commission that is devoted to drug abuse or drug eradication?

Mr. Brapniey. No; it does not.

Mr. GiLMmAN. Is that a possibility?

Mr. BrapLEy. The county has such a program.

Mr. GiLmaN. Is it possible that the municipality could develop
that kind of a program?

Mr. BrabpLEY. We work in concert with the county officials.

Mr. GiLman. What sort of a program does the county have?

Mr. Braprey. They have a commission on narcotics abuse and
use.

" Mr. Giman. Do they have a year round program of drug educa-

~ tion and drug eradication?

Mr. BRADLEY. Yes. " '

Mr. GiLMAN. And you.have assigned some people from the mu-
nicipality to work on that commission?

Mr. BraDLEY. Our law enforcement agency, the police depart-
ment, works very closely Wlth the sheriff's department on these
kinds of things.

Mr. GiMaN. What about the educational community? Are they
involved in this effort?

Mr. BrapLEY. The educational community has its own program,
and they are attempting in their own way, dealing with their
youngsters everyday, to deal with these problems. They work with
our law enforcement agencies on campus to ferret out those who
are attempting to sell or distribute the drugs or narcotics on these
campuses.

Mr. GiLMAN. Besides that effort in the educatlonal community
and your county agency, is there any other group at work on
narcotics education and abuse?

Mr. BraDLEY. Oh, yes. We have many. There is a group called
WETIP, which takes anonymous calls on any kind of narcotic
act1v1ty and then transmits that to the law enfSrcement agency.

‘They have been funded by governmental agencies as well as by

private contributions. They have been helpful.
Mr. GiLmaN. And besides WETIP, and county and education?
Mr. BrapLEy. Off the top of my head I cannot think of the names

- of others, but there are others.
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Mr. GiLmanN. Do you think that you have fully explored the
extent of your resources?

Mr. BRabLEY. No, we have not exhausted them.

Mr. GiLMAN. I would hope that we can help you in developing

- even more of an effort, and I would hope that you can spend a
“little more time, and give our committee further thought about

how the Federal Government could be of help to a mun1c1pa11ty in
that endeavor.

Mr. BrRapLEy. Thank you.

Mr. GiLmAN. Thank you, Mr. Mayor.

Mr. ZerereTTI. Mr. DeNardis.

Mr. DENaARbIs. No questions.

Mr. ZerFErgeTTI. Thank you, Mr. Mayor.

Mr. BraprLEy. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. ZerereTTI. The attorney general of the State of Cahfornla,
Mr. George Deukmejian. Thank you, Mr. Attorney General, for
appearing before us this morning. I know we have kept you Wa1t1ng
here a long time. We really apprecnate it. ,

TESTIMONY OF GEORGE DEUKMEHAN ATTORNEY GENERAL
OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA

Mr. DeEukMEJIAN. That is all right.

‘Mr. Chairman, and members of the committee, I would also like
to state, as one of the State’s constitutional officers, and as the
chief law officer for the State of California, that I am delighted
that this committee would come here to Califernia, to southern
California, to convene this most important session.

1 personally used to serve in the State legislature. I am quite
familiar with the value of the type of legislative proceedings that
you are now undertaking in this area, and indeed, when I was a
member of the State senate, I also headed a subcommittee similar
to this in the area of narcotics trafficking. Then when I was fortu-
nate enough to be elected attorney general, I have taken the re-
sults of much of the work that we did in the State senate, and have
put it to use to the extent that we can within our department of

Jjustice.

I might tell you, those of you gentlemen who are from other
States, that in this State the attorney general is also the head of
the department of justice, and we have within the department of
justice in Callfornla a State bureau of narcotic enforcement. I will
be mentioning in my remarks some of the things that we are
currently involved in, and espemally our relatlonshlp with the
Federal and local agenmes

I was pleased to hear at the outset comments from committee
members about the significance of this hearing as it relates to the
interrelationship between all these levels of government, and I
think that probably can be one of the more valuable aspects of
your entire hearing.

Narcotic trafficking with its related violent and street crime
constitutes the underlying motivation for much of our criminal
activity. It requires the full attention of all of us in government to
work toward its ultimate elimination.

Californians continue to be victimized by the abuse of narcotics
year after year. Despite vigorous efforts by law enforcement agen-
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i lex-
i nd expanded educational programs, the extent and comp
;:;Se’s oefl' the garcotic problem has grown in scope and magnltude;
In a era of limited fiscal resources, .th(_e‘ }aW enforcement cgmmu_
nity is faced with many competing priorities. It is therefore 11}cu1;1
bent upon Federal, State, and local lgw enforcement agenc1f<}s to
improve the coordination of information and enforcement efforts
reatest impact. .
fofh?slt? ghisa year, é)alifornia and the four other Western Stacicies gf
Alaska, Hawaii, Washington, and Oregon, took steps j;o coorhna e
narcotic trafficking information and to promote  its . exci a’i‘lﬁ:
among enforcement agencies at the Statg and local eYef. Lne
Western States Information Network (WSIN), a federally undeI
organization which is part of our department _of Justlce—b?nh :
serve as chairman of the board qf WSIN—and it has estaff 1?{ 1e
itself as a coordinating and clearmgh(ﬂlse for narcotic trafficking
i ion in which all agencies can share. K '
meftr}risltlg?h WSIN has jugt become operational, this year it hl_la}s1
supplied analysis and information in 14 substantial cases w 11:cd
would probably not have been made were it not for the coordinate
sented by WSIN. ' o
efﬁozgé)::t that thz future of WSIN is questionable. This is beca%si
the U.S. Department of Justice transfe?rre.d $6 mll_hon of thek$ :
million funding for all regional narcotics information netvvordsf 0
the FBI for fiscal year 1981. However, no funding is planne ptr
fiscal year 1982. Subsequently, a House Approprlathns Subcorrilml -
tee restored $3.6 million to the program, so we right now ta}ve
approximately $6.7 million for next fiscal year. It is imperative
that the funding be maintained at no lower than this level.SIN nd
We respectfully urge you to examine the beneﬁt_s of W{ 1a(111
other regional narcotic enforcement netwgrks and if you conclu eé
as we have, that these networks are effective, urge the Departmen

- of Justice and your colleagues in Congress to support them.

ifornia we have established as one of our highest priorities
th];nchaigofidation of the limited State and local narcotic enforce-
ment resources we have, into multijurisdictional task forces. Our
State bureau of narcotic enforcement together with local law en-
forcement agencies, address the narcotic problem without regard to
individual jurisdictiongl boundaries. lelle coordinated task force ap-
roven to be very successful.
pr%?lcehe?zzzlﬂi.ve and Iegislag;ve' branches of government have clealg
ly identified nércotic trafficking as a menace to our .socmty‘dqn
have brought some, but not enough resources to bear in providing
a means of eradication of this problem. However, vs{1thqut. t}le as-
sistance of the courts, sizable gains cannot be made in diminishing
w of narcotics. R
th?nﬂgeﬁifornia, as in other States, the overapplication of the exclu-
sionary rule has been a hindrance to the full application of the
laws pa(sised Igy our legilslature. :
ider this example: : o
gr? I::SlieecaSe of Cal%/)"ornia v. Hall, police officers acting in good
faith under a search warrant authorized by a magistrate, seized 438
balloons of heroin from the defendant Dorothy ]He_lll. At the trial
_court level, the judge admittedj the 48 balloons which were discov-
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ered in the defendant’s bra through a jail matron’s search, author-
ized under the search warrant. ,

The court of appeal disagreed, saying that the magistrate issued
the warrant on insufficient information and ruled the evidence
could not be used against Hall. '

The officers were acting in good faith under a search warrant.
The fruits of their investigation were excluded though their execu-
tion of the warrant was faultless. A heroin dealer thus escaped
punishment. .

Our courts have also made very liberal use of probation. Ap-
proximately 32 percent of those convicted of selling narcotics are
sentenced to State prison in California. The remaining nearly two-
thirds are allowed some form of probation. Sometimes as a condi-
tion of probation there is county jail time, but even in other situa-
tions the individual is just released back into the community.

The narcotic problem is a national problem with international
overtones, which clearly warrants the focus and attention of the
Federal Government and the resources available to it.

The Federal Government could, and I think should, assume a
more dedicated role in interdicting the importation of controlled
substances into the United States. The efforts of the Coast Guard
need to be increased, and the resources of other branches of the
military could be authorized to assist in the “drug war.” ,

As you gentlemen know, Senators Nunn and Chiles, and Repre-
sentative Billy Lee Evans have introduced S. 441 and H.R. 1806 to
allow for limited military assistance to civilian drug enforcement
agencies. Reserve Air Force units can assist State and local law
enforcement track suspected aircraft believed to be carrying nar-
cotics into our State and our Nation. _— :

Those who make our foreign policy need to be concerned about
efforts of other governments to suppress the growing of plants
which are processed into narcotics. Colombia, Turkey, and other
countries who seek U.S. aid need to be more committed to eradicat-
ing such plants. However, we should repeal the Percy amendment

~

that prohibits such countries rom using effective herbicides ‘to
destroy marihuana crops. Again, Senators Chiles and Nunn and
Representative Clay Shaw have introduced S. 644 and H.R. 2420, to
remove the prohibition, but would require in that legislaticn that
the Secretary of State notify the Secretary of Health and Human
Services of any plans to use a herbicide, and the Secretary of HHS
would monitor for health effects. ~

California, in the last decade, has experienced a change in illicit
narcotics from that of an importer and consumer to that of a
processor and exporter. The cultivation and manufacture of illicit
narcotics in California is for the national market rather than local '
consumption. Federal assistance is necessary for California to help !
}elradicate the growing of sinsemilla, a highly potent form of mari-

uana. - :

In the last 3 years, the cultivation of sinsemilla marihuana (a
more potent variety) in California has spread from four northern
counties to an additional 89 counties. We have a total of 58 coun-
ties in the State of California.

During the 1980 crop year, over 210,000 pounds of growing and
processed marihuana were seized from 1,145 crop sites. This repre-
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19-percent increase in crop sites inspeqtegd, and a 98-
;zgzgitair}cigse in plants seized over .1979. Addl_tm}{ally, 1,04%
defendants were identified, a,rrestedZ or cited for their 1ixvolvem<znd
in cultivation efforts. In-most counties local efforts were supporte
by the State bureau of narcotic enforcqme’nt (BNE) and DEA. .

BNE is currently working with sheriffs’ departments that }Vl ’ e
involved in the eradication effort to plan for the most effective
delivery of services in the coming yeéir.

BNE cannot provide funding for overtime, per diem or salaries

for local enforcement personnel. Personnel costs constitute the
largest part of the expenses associated with eradication. .
The eradication of crops is basically manual labor which 1nvt§) V((EiS
the harvesting and transportation of large amounts of contraband.
An average size crop of approximately }30’ plants will cost appx}')om-
mately $3,000 to eradicate. While sheriffs departments must dearl'
the bulk of the responsibility and resource commitment to kgza
with the problem, they require some assistance. We are wor 1{11g
with DEA to obtain financial assistance needed to eradicate t 1e
bulk of the 1981 crop. Some people in the press and other pe.ope;
have chided us a little bit—a little bit of teasing, a little bit o
humor—about our spending a great deal of effort in trying t(%
control the growing of marihuana and this more potent form o1
sinsemilla, here in California. Let me say that there are two rea
strong reasons why I think that that has to continue, our en_forcs-
ment efforts. There are probably more than two, but I would like to
m%lrf;mils tgloat we do ¢all upon these governments in foreign coun-
tries, and ask them to help the problem that we have‘ got in this
country by sending out their law enforcement persopnel, risking
their lives at times, in order to eradicate the growing of thes%
plants in their countries. And there have been many casesho
deaths and injuries to those law enforcement agents in those (it ir
countries. And then they turn and look at us, and they say, look,
you are growing it in your own country, in your own State—are
you doing everything that you can to help to eradicate. Well let me
j that is one main reason. g
Juirfgg}’ler main reason is that I attended the nlg’h!: before last a
large meeting to observe “Forgotten Victims Week” in Cahfornla.({
might also say that the President of the, United States has declarfe
this as “National Victims Rights Week” as well. And a mother of a
young boy who was murdered had the courage to get up befor%
several hundred people to tell about the impact of the murder 0
her son, the impact that it has had on her, her husband, thellll‘
other children of that family. And she also had the courage 1;0 te
everybody who was in attendance that her son had been using
marihuana. He died as a result of numerous sfab wounds and she
said that they had talked with their son about using marihuana,
and he said, well, a little bit of marihuana, you.know, it really is
not going to hurt anything. And that was the attitude her son had.
And T regret to say, it is undoubtedly the attitude that a lot of
people have—sure, a lot of people that do use marihuana do not get
murdered, I recognize that. But at the same time there are those
types of tragedies wherein a young person as a result of getting
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involved in the use and with others eventually wound up becoming
the victim of a very vicious type of murder.

So I think that it is vital that we have full Federal support in
our nationwide fight against the growing narcotic problem. A co-
ordinated and integrated narcotic enforcement program, addressing
the problem at all levels, is essential. In this time of grave fiscal
constraints, government at all levels must work together to get the
most impact for our tax dollars. Thank you very much.

Mr. ZerereTTI. Thank you. Might I also note for the record that
the two Congressmen that you mentioned, Congressman Billy Lee
Evans and Congressman Clay Shaw, who introduced the paraquat
and the posse comitatis legislation are both members of this com-
mittee, and have worked over the years and through the efforts of
this committee have produced that kind of legislation. We are
looking at reviewing all Federal drug-related criminal laws. And
we ‘will be recommending legislatively to the committees of juris-
diction at the proper time.

I would like to ask you, though, one or two questions.

The growing of the marihuana plant, which has increased here
in California, what is the charge, what is the crime—is it a felony,
a misdemeanor, how is it handled as far as the courts are con-
cerned?

Mr. DEURMEJIAN. It is a felony. But I regret to say to you that
the judges who have thus far been deciding those cases, and sen-
tencing, have sent very, very few people to prison. In our State, as
in most States, a felony calls for a State prison sentence. Generally
speaking the sentences have been rather light. Generally speaking
they have been a fine or just a very short period of time in the
county jail, and back out to the street,

Mr. Zerererti. There is no mandatory type of structured sen-
tence for any kind of drug-related crime?

Mr. DEukMESIAN. We have two types of crimes that do call for a
mandatory State prison sentence, and that is in the sale of heroin,
over a half-ounce, and in the sale of PCP., That PCP law, which was
one that we sponsored, has just recently gone into effect, I believe
January of this year, but only in those two situations. But in the
case of the growing of sinsemilla, the treatment has been as I have
indicated.

Mr. ZrrerETTI AlsO, M. Attorney General, the Federal prosecu-
tors complain an awful lot about the kind of bail jumping on drug
offenses. Are you faced with the same kind of problems here? Are
you getting that same kind of reaction?. .}

Mr. DEUKMEJIAN. Well, we are faced with numerous cases of
where individuals who have been charged with trafficking in nar-
cotics, they make bail, because they all seem to have a great deal
of cash, can come up with.-it awfully quickly. They niake bail and
very often are back out selling while they are ouf on bail. One of
the things that we are pushing very hard for this year in our State
is a reform of our bail laws, because in this State a judge cannot
even consider the past record of the defendant who is before him,
cannot consider whether this person will commit additional crimes

while out on bail, or commit violent crimes. All he can consider, he
or she, is whether this person will show up for trial on the date set
for trial. We are trying now to get a constitutional amendment on
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the ballot, and if we can do that, then at least the judge will have
some discretion and can consider these other factors.

Mr. ZEFERETTI. Beyond that, we do not even have the authority
to go in and find out where the money is coming from. That is
another problem that we have on the Federal level.

We have seen some really increasing indications that organized
crime is more and more taking over drug trafficking. Do you see
evidence of that here in California? And if so, what kind of cooper-
ation are you receiving from the Federal Government?

Mr. DEUKMEJIAN. In general, we have seen an increasing amount
of activity of persons associated with organized crime in California.
I could not say to you that we have seen an increasing amount of
organized criminal activity in the narcotics field, in the sense—if
you are talking in the sense of organized crime as the eastern
syndicate type of organized crime groups. Now, a lot of the traffick-
ing in narcotics is done in an organized fashion, but not necessarily
tied to the traditional types of syndicated groups that we have
often referred to as being part of organized crime. But there are a
lot of entrepreneurs now in the whole drug trafficking area. And
we have established in our department a special prosecutions unit,
made up of teams of deputy attorney generals, as well as investiga-
tors, and one of the charges that I have given them—I should say
not one, but the main charge I have given them is to prosecute
cases involved with organized crime as well as with major narcotics
trafficking. And we have been doing that, again, in cooperation
with other law enforcement agencies.

If I may say, Mr. Chairman, the degree of cooperation between
California law enforcement agencies and Federal law enforcement
agencies in general is good. The only area that we would bring
your attention to—we sometimes find that among the Federal
agencies themselves, that sometimes there seems to be a great deal
of competition, a great deal of rivalry, and sometimes they very
jealously protect their jurisdictions and their turf, so to speak. To
the extent that there can be an improved national policy with
respect to this whole area of enforcement of our drug laws—and
you know better than I do all the different Federal agencies that
have some role to play—and to the extent that those agencies can
be more coordinated, as I have tried to indicate in my statement,
and at the same time work together on ¢ ~ss, both within them-
selves and with the State and local law en, .‘cement agencies, the
more I think we are going to benefit the public and the more

wisely we are going to be using the very, very precious tax rev-

enues that are available. ,

Mr. ZerereTTI. I think, Mr. Attorney General, if you polled every

member of this committee they would agree with you. Because over
the years of our hearings, we have found that to be prevalent.- And
as a result of some of the recommendations we have made, we find
a more cohesive kind of cooperative effort between DEA, Coast
Guard, and Customs, which hag really produced some good results.
And it is in that vein that we want to go forward. But again, I
think it is a question that each one of them self-sustain themselves
to draw the priority in dollars through the appropriation processes
that is necessary. So you are right, you are absolutely correct. And
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it is up to us really to create that kind of Federal infusion of
dollars that make it possible for them to get that priority. -

Mr. Railsback.

Mr. RaiLsBack. May I ask, Mr. Attorney General, can you give
us some examples of your WSIN program, and how it has worked. I
think you mentioned 14 actions. ,

Mr. DEUKMEJIAN. I do not have with me the facts of the actual
cases that I have mentioned, 14 substantial ones. But basically it is
a case of where we get an inquiry from a law enforcement agency
in some State. It comes into our Western States Information Net-
work. We serve as again the clearinghouse, the place to exchange
the information. And by virtue of being able to provide significant
information, it has helped in that regard. But beyond that, we do
one other thing that is perhaps a little bit more unique. We have
available people who are able to analyze cases and are able to plot
out the factg, if you will, for the law enforcement agency, for the
prosecutor, ‘in such a manner that the prosecutor and the law
enforcement people are better able to analyze what information
they already have. And this takes people with some experience,
and it takes people who have available to' them virtually as much
information as possible. But it is not just picking up bits of infor-
mation here and there. It is how you analyze it, how you put it
together, and our Western States Information Network is able to
gr?ﬁde that service along with just passing information back and

orth.

Mr. RaiLsBack. Could I ask, is it primarily located in California,
or do you have agents in the other States? Is it really a California
entity, or are you dispersed?

Mr. DEUKI\_/IEJIAN. No. There are representatives in all of the five
Western States that serve as a part of the Western States Informa-
tion Network.

Mr. RaiLsBack. But they are funded primarily through Califor-
nia, is that right?

Mr. DEUKMEJIAN. Yes.

Mr. RamLsBack. By your department of justice?

Mr. DEUkMEJIAN. No. The funding comes from the U.S. Depart-
ment of Justice budget. But the Western States Information Net-
work is housed in our California Department of Justice. And so we
are able to exercise control. And again, I sit as the chairman of the
board that is made up of representatives of all the States.

Mr. RansBack. Let me ask you this. I am very much concerned
by the 32-percent-sentencing rate for those that are convicted of
trafficking. And what I am wondering is do you have any kind of a
breakdown as to what kind of traffickers are being released. Are
they all marihuana traffickers? What are the distinctions in the
convictions and the sentencing? , ~ )

Mr. DeukMEJIAN. I do not have an analysis of that available. 1
would be more than happy to ask our people to try to develop such
an analysis for the committee. :

- Mr. RamsBack. Would you do that. We would appreciate that.

Mr. DEUKMEJIAN. Yes. ’

_[In response to the information requested the following informa-
tion is furnished:] o
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In regard to the additional information you requested, disposition information by
drug is not readily available as state statutes rely on a scheduling system similar to
the federal system for classification of drugs and offenses. We are, however, at-
Eempting to develop some sampling information in this area which may be of benefit

0 you.

Mr. RaiLsBack. But we are talking, are we not, about dealers and
traffickers rather than users?

Mr. DeukMEJIAN. That is right. Oh yes.

Mr. RamsBack. So only 32 percent of those convicted are actually
confined?

Mr. DEUKMEJIAN. Sent to State prison. And as I said, the remain-
der receive some form of probation, sometimes with county jail
time, sometimes not.

Mr. RaisBack. I might just mention, with respect to your con-
cern about the exclusionary rule, it is something that has been a
concern of many, many criminologists for a long time. It is some-
thing, Mr. Chairman, that as a member of the Judiciary Commit-

tee, I think we do have to seriously consider altering the rule since

we have heard many complaints very similar to the one that you
are making.

Thank you very much.

Mr. ZerERETTI. Mr. Dornan.

Mr. DorNAN. Mr. Attorney General, contrary to some analysis of
our hearings here, we have a surplus of intellectual riches, so we
have to be very brief because there are so many distinguished
witnesses coming after you. But your political base includes serving
as a State senator before you became attorney general in a major
port area of our State of California, the Long Beach area. We have
the longest coastline in the United States, together with Texas and
Florida. Therefore we are really hit hardest with sea importation
of illegal drugs. There was an excellent article in the Los Angeles
Times recently detailing what a desperate job some very dedicated
Coast Guard pilot officer, had flying C-130’s over the coast, trying
to cover a massive section of the Pacific Ocean.

As you travel around the State, as our senior law enforcement
officer, do you try to stimulate a teamwork effort with all the
various agencies? You mentioned these competing jealousies. It has
been the impression of every one of us on this committee that the
only time there is real impact is when all jurisdictional levels come
together to focus their attention. Could you just comment briefly
on the sea problem? .

Mr. DeukMEJIAN. Yes. This adds to our problem, no question
about it. There is a tremendous quantity, in fact tons of illegal
narcotics that come into California through the use of boats, other
vessels. And of course we have a tremendous amount coming in by
aircraft also. So we get it both ways. It is our policy that we work
these cases cooperatively. And I will tell you, we do it in our own
self interest. Because we do not have enough people, we do not
have enough resources to work these cases alone. And so what we
try always to do is to take some agents of our Bureau of Narcotic
Enforcement, some from the local sheriff or police department as
the case may be, and from DEA, if they are able and willing to
assist, and when Customs or the Coast Guard are involved, you
know, we want always to work with all of them. And we think that
if you can take a few people from each of these agencies, given that
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it is a case that involves the trafficking from another country or
coming in from out of State, that if you can take a few agents from

.each of these agencies to work a case, then we are going to not only

coordinate and utilize all of our resources, and all of the informa-
tion available, but we are going to really get far more impact, be
far more effective for the dollars that are available.

Mr. DorNAN. In discussing this problem with our Ambassador
and drug enforcement officials in Costa Rica, they said that the
transporters, the pilots and some of the yacht owners, are romanti-
cized figures—just as we romanticized rum runners during prohibi-
tion. They say in court they are really pilots who have nothing to
do with the problem of using and purchasing; that they will cop a
plea, turn State’s evidence, and go back to flying. And I was

‘shocked to find the aircraft pilots do not lose their licenses. Many

of them are Vietnam veterans. Do you think it would be a positive
step to come up with legislation to let them escape a jail sentence
if they turn State’s evidence, but mandate that they lose their
pilot’s license for a second period of time and for life if they are

caught as a second offender running contraband back into this

country. A lot of this activity involves gun running now in Central
South America in addition to narcotics running.

Mr. DEURMEJIAN. I would feel that prison sentences would be a

far greater deterrent than losing their licenses. If I could make any
little comparison, you know, a lot of people in California lose their
licenses, their drivers licenses, when they get convicted of drunk
driving, and we know that literally hundreds and thousands of
them are out there driving without a license. They do not seem to
mind taking that risk.
- It would seem to me that these pilots are probably making a
great deal of money and I do not think the loss of their license is
going to stop them from continuing to engage in illegal activities
when there is a lot of money to be made. Perhaps spending some
time in prison might indeed dissuade them.

Mr. DorNAN. Maybe a combination of both. I was informed it is
so profitable that sometimes a pilot wili be given literally an
expensive multiengine aircraft, like a DC-3, after the first or
second trip as his reward. This is in additien to his financial
reward. L

Mr. DEUKMEJIAN. One of the things I know you have heard, and
that is, it probably would help a great deal if we could seize more
of these vehicles, boats, airplanes, that are used in the trafficking,
to take, in effect to hit them in the pocketbook, to hit the traffick-
ers as much as we can in the pocketbook. And I think that will be
an even greater deterrent, the more we can do that. For example, I
know you will hear from DEA, I think you will, that, for example,
in the growing of this marihuana, the sinsemilla, and so on, we
would like to be able perhaps to have laws that allow us to seize
the land, to take the land. If they are going to use that illegally,
then maybe there should be some remedies along those lines, And
again, when you hit them in the pocketbook that way, that may be
a more effective deterrent, because as I have said, some of our
judges seem to treat them rather lightly when it comes to fines.
You know, fines are just a part of doing business. That does not
affect them very much. v
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Mr. DorNAN. Last vear.two South American drug traffick
apprehended in South America skipped $1 million bail %ac}i 'l\llla}?ﬁ
that will get across to the judges just how overwhelming the input
of billions of dollars into this industry is affecting the court system.

meTriank you very much, Mr. Attorney General, for a super state-

Mr. ZrrFERETTL. Mr. Gilman.

Mr. GimaN. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Mr. Attorney General,
we certainly welcome some of your remarks in focusing attention
on the need to do more by way of a coordinated effort here.

- I was particularly interested in your seizure concerns. You may
be interested, as part of your review of legislation that is pending,
that I have introduced along with my colleagues a measure to
allow the Drug Enforcement Administration to retain some of their
seizure money so that they will not be hit with a budgetary limita-
tlgn. And we hope we can engender some support for that sort of
ke“f;;rrtr.l (ﬁlte a :tlmetvxéhen Weial ha‘&a budgletary constraints, we find that

i y is not too easily attainable in many of the jurisdicti
WI}}IICh lﬁgd}? me to my first question. o © Jurisdictions.

ow high a priority has California placed i
thleVISt%e g B v nia placed on the drug effort in
_ Mr. DEUKMEJIAN. Well, I can tell you as it relates to our effort
in our department, it has the highest priority that we can giveri?:f
And I think as an example I can tell you that in the last year we
increased the number of arrests of drug dealers by 40 percent;
Varrests.that were carried out by members of our State Bureau of
‘Narcotic Enforcement. And we increased the quantity of seizures
bgrs tf);gS ipercent. SodI.cahn tell you that as far as the department of
'zgi ‘17\?[ ig; s concerned, it has the highest priority that we.can possibly

r. GILMAN. I recognize the emphasis you are placing on th
effor§ within your own department. But how highpa prigrity hag
gl;:tggate legislature placed narcotics in the overall activity of the

Mr. DEUKMEJIAN. 1 do not think that it has d i i

EUKM . placed it at a high
inough priority. I had to really battle to get authorization to ;%rid

5 agents, narcotics ‘agents. And I had to work almost 1% years to

convince the ‘iegislature and the Governor ¢y authorize just the
?dd1t;on of 15. And I finally did it by saying we would finance it
S?I&i aﬁ:nilgi Iiilé'eady laplﬁogrlated% not even asking for new money.
s an example. It doe ' i iority &
PO that s deserves.p s not seem to get as high a priority as

bul?l\ige.tg}ILMAN. What»-}',‘sth‘i‘budget‘ foJr garcotics efforts in the State
r. DEUKMEJIAN. I de:not have'a figure that I could. br k
for you on that. Again, I would be happy to get it and to pr%%idglgs
to the committee. But I do not have it at hand.

[The information requested follows:]

State funds currently set aside for narcotic enforcement activities are within th.e

» Attorney General’s'budget in which $6.1 million are provided to fund our Bureau of

Narcotic Enforcement with a staff of 115 special agents. Additionally, as mentioned

in our previous correspondence, the State..commi illi :
treatment, rehabilitation, and education pf‘ﬁigr;?nrglts $56 million annually to drug

Mr. GiLMAN. What portion of i ‘k |
/ ..Wha your own budget -
cotic efforts, approximately, in percentages? get 15, spent on nax
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Myr. DeukMESIAN. I will see if one of the members of my staff
knows the percentage. But I am not sure he has it broken out.

Mr. GiLMan. All right. Just if you could give us a rough idea of
what percentage of your total budget is spent on narcotics.

Mr. DEUKMEJIAN. About $6 million out of our total of $120 mil-
lion budget.

Mr. GiMAN. And does your staff—can your staff person tell us
how much is expended statewide for narcotics, besides the $6 mil-
lion that you spent. Is there any other funds that are spent?

Mir. DEURMEJIAN. First I would like to identify——

Mr. GiLmaN. Your staff is shaking his head, no:

Mr. DEukMEJIAN. I would like to identify him as Mr. Del Pierce,
assistant director of the division of law enforcement within the
department of justice. ‘

Mr. GiLMAN. Thank you. Mr. Pierce, is there any other fund that
is expended as far as you know, statewide, besides the $6 million
that the Attorney General has allocated in narcotics enforcement?

Mr. PiErce. In addition to the $6 million, the Western States
Information Network is a separate budgeted item within our de-
partment. With the elimination of LEAA, our own State planning
agency nc longer has statewide money available to support narcotic
enforcement efforts. ; c

My, GiLMAN. What are we talking about for total State budget
roughly? The overall State budget for all activities?

Mr. DEUKMEJIAN. When you say State budget, you are not count-
ing all local law enforcement? ’ ‘

Mr. Pierck. No, I am talking about State government.

Mr. DEUKMEJIAN. I would say it is that figure, that $6 million.

Mr. GizMAN. I am talking about total expenditure in the State.

Mr. DEUKMEJIAN. Total State budget? $24.5 million.

Mr. GiMAN. So we are spending $6 million out of $24 million for
narcotics efforts in the State of California, is that correct, in State
efforts? '

Mr. DEUKMEJIAN. In the enforcement area. Now, there are a lot
of moneys spent in treatment and a lot of moneys spent in educa-
tion. I do not have those figures.

Mr. GrmaN. When you say a lot of money, would it exceed your
$6 million budget or be less than that? ‘

“Mr. DeukMEJIAN. Sir, I do not know. I have no idea of how much

is allocated. v

Mr. GizMAN. I would assume it would be somewhat less than
your $6 million estimate. '

Mr. DEukMEJIAN. I would say the treatmient part, because we
have such a severe problem that we spend many millions of dollars
in drug abuse treatment programs. I would say that off the top of
my head, I think probably more than $6 million is spent in treat-
ment. But education, I am sure it is not near that. :

Mr. GiLmAaN. I was interested in your concern about the legisla-
tion pending in regard to paraquat, which I think will be approved.

It has gone through the Foreign Affairs Committee favorably and

is going through some of the other committees, be out on the
House floor shortly. I assume it is going to be adopted.

With regard to some of the foreign aid area, you talk about the
need for enforcement. We did put into the law last year provision
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that allows our Nation to exert some economic penalties on those
Nations that do not cooperate with our effort by way of foreign aid.
And this year for the first time we are going to implement some
~ legislation we adopted last year to permit our Nation to provide a
' portion of foreign aid funds, to provide a substitute crop, particu-
larly in Peru, which provides about 50 percent of the world supply
of cocaine. And we hope that that will be adopted and that it will
be effective. And I appreciate your focusing some attention on that
aspect. :

I]))o you see any greater need for a greater cooperative effort
between the Federal Government and State enforcement agencies
in this area? .

Mr. DEUKMEJIAN. Oh, yes. I think that there is still, as I have
said—we have a good deal of cooperation. But I think it can be
improved. I think there has to be even a much closer working
relationship. o ‘

Mr. GiuMAaN. In what particular area do you see a need for
greater cooperation? And I hope that you could be candid. That is
what we are seeking. We are not seeking to criticize any of the
agencies, but to try to be of help in bringing together some of the
intergovernmental response. : -

Mr. DeukMEJIAN. Well, basically, again, it is a case of the will-
ingness, and having a policy.to allow the Federal agencies to work
jointly with us on cases. When we have information about a case, if
we can call upon them, and ask for their assistance, assigning
personnel, other resources to work with us jointly on cases; and
vice versa. Sometimes the exchange of information, the policies

that_are involved in information that we get from the Federal

agencies—I will give you kind of an illustration. There are certain
policies by some of the departments that if they give information to
a State agency, or even to a local agency, that they have to notify
just about everybody else about the fact that they have’given a
piece of information to a particular locdl agency. That may or may
not be useful in carrying out that investigation. In other words,
sometimes if too much information is given to too many different
" people, then the investigator, the agency, that is conducting that
investigation sometimes finds that they have lost effectiveness.

There are just some policies that have been laid down, and I do
not think it is by the new administration—I do not know what they

are doing yet in terms of looking at it-—but there are some policies

that we think can be modified for greater cooperation and more
effective investigation and apprehension practices. :

_Mr. GILMAN. You are talking about Federal policies now? -

" Mr. Pierce. Yes. And probably they have got some—they may
have some suggestions on some of ours. All I am saying is that we

will be more than happy if they are more than happy te sit down

and be as open and cooperative as possible to work out some of the
problems. But the people we deal with, you see—— IR

Mr. GiLMAN. Are you talking about the Drug Enforcement Ad-
ministration now?

. Mr. DEUkMEJIAN. . Yes. And the people we deal with of course are
following policies that are laid down by higherups in Washington.
So they have—I mean the people we come in centact with at:the
regional area, they have to go and follow the policies that have

sy
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been established for their whole department. So sometimes they do
not have all of the freedom to do the kind of things that perhaps
we think would be advisable in a given instance. And I know it is
difficult, but again if some of the policies could be altered so that
there would be maybe more flexibility, more willingness on the
part of the Federal agency to cooperate fully with the State and
local agency, I think it would be very useful.

Mr. GiMAN. Have you taken the opportunity to try to iron out
those problems with the Federal agency?

Mr. DEukMETIAN. Well, we have—yes, we have communicated.
Again, that was primarily under the former administration. And
now we are beginning to do so as we find who is now going to be in
charge of some of these agencies at this time. And I personally
happen to be in a good position, because, you know, since the
President came from California, and most all of his top White
House staff and of course the new Attorney General, all of these
people that I know personally, and of course we are going to be in
a position where at least as far as the executive branch is con-

- cerned we feel that we are going to be able to work with them very

cooperatively, and be able to explain to them some of the vroblems
that we have experienced up to this point. < .
Mr. GiLmMAN. Mr. Attorney General, if you find after exploring

‘this you still are having some difficulty in working out your policy

problems, we would welcome if you could submit to us any recom-
mendation that you see as the need for a change in some of these
policies in order to have a closer working relationship. C

Thank you. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. ZerereTTI. Could I just ask one question. Are you talking
about policies or are you talking about regulations? Are you talk-
ing about administrative polici€s or about a regulation?

Mr. DeukMEsIAN. We are talking mostly about administrative
regulations within an agency, within DEA, or within Customs, or
within the FBL - ‘ |
- Mr. ZerereTTI. I am trying to get the stage between the adminis-
trative regulation that might come forward rather than adminis-
trative policy that some administrator might want to put forth.

‘Mr, DEukMEJIAN. I may not have the correct terminology. We
are talking about the policies that their agents, that their directors
in the regions and so on, have to follow. Whatever that is referred
to at the Federal level I am not certain.

Mr. ZerereTTI. Thank you. Mr. DeNardis.

Mr. DENARDpIS. Mr. Chairman, I do not have any further ques-
tions. But I just want to emphasize—first I want to thank you for
your testimony. I find it most helpful. I do want to emphasize this
intergovernmental regulations aspect. Mr. Gilman has pursued
some questions to you, and you have alluded to it in your testimo-
ny and responses to questions thus far. The drug enforcement is a
classic' problem in intergovernmental relations. And you did indi-
cate the high degree of cooperation between State and local law .
enforcement officers. And in a general way you talked about col-

laborative efforts with the Feds. I am not going to ask you to be

specific now, but I think we need to zero in on precisely how we

' can set up multijurisdictional teams that included the Feds. I think

just occasional, maybe even frequent notification of activities is not
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enough. There has to be coordination from the very outset in
planning and carrying through. Now, maybe I have missed some-
thing this morning. Maybe that exists here in California. I am not
hearing that.

Do you have any spec:1ﬁc way you can suggest now or later that
“this might be done? I think this is crucial, absolutely crucial.

Mr. Pierce. Well, sir, I would comment that we do participate in
an ongoing basis in a number of task forces, multijurisdictional
task forces, in which the Drug Enforcement Administration pro-
vides members, agents, officers, and in some instances funding. A
task force exists here in Los Angeles. One exists in San Diego. And
they participate in a task force that we manage in Imperial
County, here in California. So that there is an ongoing cooperative
effort, not a case-by-case related effort, but an ongoing cooperative
Venture between the Federal Government and State and local
agencies here in California. It is_present to a limited extent.

Mr. DENARrpis. It is present to a limited extent?

Mr. Pierce. It is not present throughout the State In other
words, they have national priorities. We have State and local prior-
ities in California. And sometimes the priorities are not in concert
with each other.

I};I‘;' DeNarpis. Would you characterize it as highly institutional-
ize

Mr. PiERcE. I do not quite understand.

Mr. DeNARrbis. Is it a meet and discuss what we have been doing
kind of thing, or meet regularly to discuss new and budding efforts
to coordinate activities, so that the right hand knows what the left
hand is doing?

Mr. Pierce. It is in the spirit of cooperation with all resources
hoping to bring the most cost-effective means of suppressing the
problem. It is certainly not an institutional meet and conference,
but a cooperative spirit.

Mr. DENARrpis. Thank you. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. ZerereTTI. Thank you, gentlemen.

Before we call our next witness, for identification purposes, let
me introduce on the lower level here Mr. Patrick Carpentier, the
chief counsel of the committee, and Mr. Ross Starek on your right,
as the minority counsel for the committee.

Also I think a little bit of business we should do before we go
further. I will entertain a motion to waive rule 70, page 8, which
allows only some four TV cameras and some limited numbers of

photographers, in order that we might give access to the entire
press.

Mr. GILMAN. So move, Mr. Chairman.
- Mr. ZerererT. No obJectlons heard. OK.
[Mr. Deukmejian’s prepared statement follows:]

L2
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PREPARED STATEMENT OF GEORGE DEUKMEJIAN, ATTORNEY GENERAL OF THE

STATE OF CALIFORNIA

- Narcotic trafficking with its related violent and street
crime constitutes the underlying motivation for much of our
criminal activity. It requires the full attention of all
of us in government to work towards its ultimate elimination.

Californians continue to be victimized by the abuse
of narcotics year after year. Despite vigorous efforts by
law enforcement agencies and expanded educational pr@gfams,
the extent and compiexity of the narcotic problem has grown
in scope and magnitude.‘

In an era of limited fiscal resources, the law enforce-
ment community is faced with many competing priorities. It
is therefore incumbent upon federal, state and local law
enforcemeént agencies to improve the coordination of
information and enforcement efforts for the greatest impact.

Just this year, California and the four other Western
States of Alaska, Hawaii, Washington and Oregon, took steps
to coordinate narcotic trafficking information and to promote
its exchange among enforcement agencies at the state and local

level. The Western States Information Network (WSIN), a

federally funded organization which is part of our Department
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of Justice, has’established jtself as a coordinating and
clearinghouse for narcotic trafficking information in
whlch all agencies can share.

Although WSIN has just become operational, it has
supplied analysis and information in 14 substantial cases
which would probably not have been made were it not for
the coordinated effert presented by WSIN.

I regret that the future of WSIN is questionable. o
This is because the United States Department of Justice
transferred 6 million of the 9.1 million funding for all
reglonal narcotlcs information networks to the FBI_fef

FY 1981. no fundlng is planned for FY 1982.

However,
Subsequently, a house appropriations subcommittee rYestored
3.6 mllllon to rhe program, SO We right now have approxi-

mately 6 7 million for next flscal year. It is imperative

T ewatTthe funding be maintained at no lower than this level.

We respectfully urge you to examine the. benefits of WSIN
and other regional\narcotic enforcement networks and if you
that these networks are effective,

conclude, as we have

” urge the Department of uustlce and your colleagues in

Congress to support them.
In California we have established as one  of our highest
priorities the consolidation of the 1imited state and local

into multi-

Jurlsdlctlonal task forces

H

Enforcement together with local law enforcement agencies.

&
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address the narcotic problem without regard to individual

jurisdictional boundaries. The coordinated task force

approach has proven to be very successful.

The executive and legislative branches of government
have clearly identified narcotic trafficking as a menace
to our society and have brought some, But not enough
resources to bear in providing a means of eradication of
this problem. .

However, without the assistance of the

courts, sizable gains cannot be made in diminishing the

flow of narcotics.

In California, as in other statee, the oven—applicatidﬁ’ :

of the exclusionary rule has been a hinderance to the full
application of the laws passed by our Legislature.

Consider this example:

In the case of Califormia v. Hall, police officers
acting in good faith under a search warrant a&thorieed
»by a magistrate, seized 48 balloons of heroin from the |
defendant Dorothy Hall. At the trial court ievelLfgpe judgev
admitted the 48 balloons which were discovered in the |

1 . ) . )
defendant's bra through a jail matron's search, authorized

under the warrant. o . ' i

The‘Court“ofbAppeal disagreed, saying that the magistrate

issued the warrant on insufficient information and ruled

the evidence could not be used against Hall.

.

- The officers were acting in good faith under a search

warrant. The frui;e of their investigation were excluded
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though their execution of the warrant was faultless. A

~heroin dealer thus escaped punishment.

Our courts have also made very liberal use of proba-
tdbn. Approximately 32 percent of those convicted of
selling narcotics are sentenced to state prison in
California.

The narcotic problem is a national probleﬁ with
international overtones, which clearly warrants the focus
and attention of the federal government and the resources
available to it. | '

The federal government could, and I think should,
assume a more dedicated role in interdicting the importation
of controlled substances into the United States. The efforts
of the Coast Guard need to be increased, and the resources
of other branches of the military could be authorized to
assist in the '''drug war."

Reserve Air Force units can assist state and local
law enforcement traék suspected aircraft believed to be

carrying narcotics.?

” Those who make our foreign policy need to be concerned

about efforts of oﬁher governments to suppress the growing
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such countries from using effective chemical plant killers.

California, in the last decads, has experienced a
change in illicit narcoties from that of an importer and
consumer to that of a processor and exporter. The cultiva-
tion and manufacture of illicit narcotics in California is
for tﬂe national market réther than local consumption.
Federal assistance is necessary for California to eradicate
the growing of Sinsemilla.

In the last three years the cultivation of Sinsemilla/
Marijuana (a more potent variety) in California has spread
from four northern counties/to an additional 39 countdies.

During the 1980 crop yéér, over 210,000 pounds of
growing and processed mérijuana'were seized from 1,145
crop sites. This represented a 119 percent incffase in
crop sites inspectea, and a 98 percent increase\in plants
seized over 1979. A@ditionally, 1,042 defendants were
identified, arrested or cited for their involvement in
cultivation efforts. 1In most counties local.efforts were
supported by the state Bureau of Narcotic Enforcement (BNE)
and DEA.

BNE is currently working with sheriffs' departments
that will be involved in the eradication effort to plan
for the most effective delivery of services. BNE cannot

provide funding for overtime, per diem or salaries for local

enforcement personnel. ' Persommel costs constitute the
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largest part of the expenses associated with eradication.
The eradication of crops is basically manual labor
which involves the harvesting and transportation of largé
amounts of contraband. An average size crop of approximately
130 plants will cost approximately $3,000 to eradicate.
While sheriffs' departments must bear the bulk of‘ghe
responsibility and resource commitment to deal with the
problem, they require some assistance. We are working
with DEA to obtain finanéiél assistance needed to eradicate
the bulk of the 1981 crop. .
It is vital that we have full federal support in our
nationwide fight against the growing narcotic problem. A
coordinated and integrated narcotic enforcement program,
addressing the problem at all levels, is essential.

In this time of grave fiscal constraints, government

at all levels must work together,
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StaTE oF CALIFORNIA,
... DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE,
Sacramento, Calif., May 7, 1981.
Hon. Lo C. ZEFERETTI,
House of Representatives,
Washington, D.C.

DeAr CONGRESSMAN ZEFERETTL Attorney General Deukmejian has asked me to
thank you'for allowing him to testify before your Committee during the hearings
that were recently held in Los Angeles, and to provide you with the following
supplemental information.

There may be some confusion regarding what was said about cooperation between
the State and the Drug Enforcement Administration. Our California Department of
Justice has enjoyed an especially high level of cooperation in both operational and
administrative areas with the Drug Enforcement Administration personnel assigned
to this region. I would like to add that since Mr. Deukmejian became Attorney
General 2 years ago, the spirit of cooperation between the Drug Enforcement
Administration and our Department has continued to grow and prosper. Qur frus-
tration with Federal enforcement efforts is centered on the coordination and priori-
tization of programs among the multitude of Federal agencies having responsibility.

While tkie majority of Attorney General Deukmejian’s testimony was directed at
narcotic enforcement programs, the State of California does administer an extensive
program directed at the prevention, treatment, or rehabilitation of drug abuse.
Since 1978, as a regult of the Drug Abuse Treaiment Act, which he coauthored,
California has operafid an effective program in-drug education and public aware-
ness, as well as the treatment and rehabilitation of drug abusers. Accordingly, the
State has committed $56 million annuaily to these drug programs, a portion of
which is Federal funding. The prevention, treatment, and rehabilitation programs
are administered at all levels of government through the California State Depart-
ment of Alcohol and Drug Programs.

It is hoped that the hearings provided you with some insight into the narcotic
problems facing the western United States. :

Very truly yours, :
, , MiIcHAEL FRANCHETTI,
Chief Deputy Attorney General,

The CuarMAN. We invited Robert K. Corbin, attorney general of

Arizona, to appear today. However, other commitments prevented

him from attending. A statement for the record was submitted by

Mr. Corbin which will be included in the record without objection.
[Mr. Corbin’s prepared statement follows:]
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PREPARED STATEMENT OF ROBERT K. CORBIN, ATTORNEY GENERAL OF THE

STATE OF ARIZONA

Attorney ®Benern
. STATE CAPITOL

. Robert J. Qorbin
April 23, 1981

Mr. Brian Bennett ,

6151 West Century Boulevard'
Suite 1018 .
Los Angeles, Cai. 90045

Re: Arizona's Narcotics Problem

Dear Brian:

arni nt from me
: In response to your phone call concerning a statemen
about Akizona'g problems with the narcotics trafficking, the follow-
ing is my statement on this matter.

Since Arizona is a border state wi@h Mexico, .we do have a
very serious narcotics problem with‘narcot1cs.be1qg byought f{gm
Mexico into Arizona and through Arizona for dlstr1put1on_1n 0 gr
states of our country. Approximatg1y 50% we feel is coming ;n yuto-
air while the remining 50% (approximately) is coming by truc S,lan
mobiles, and by foot or on mules. As you know, we have a very o%igs
border with Mexico, which makes it d1ff1cu1t to patrol for n$¥?cers
smuggling. Our state, counties and cities law enforcement offi aﬁd
to my knowledge, have very few aircraft for surye111ance purposes a
what we do have are either single engine or an isolated tw1n1gng%gd.
These aircraft are used for other purposes so there is very t1m1 e, s
air surveillance by state, counties and local 1aw enforcemen 2ge .
It is also my understanding that the_border pabro1,'cus§oms,f§ c.e 2150
also have limited aircraft for surveillance and their a1r§ra t artate
single engine ‘and a very few twin engine. Contrary to fe er? s S 2 iﬁs
county and local law enforcement, thg drug traffickers are f y1n% hw )
4-engine and jet aircraft. So even if we spot one, we cannot ca ger~
them nor can we sometimes reach their altitude. It is a1sg Qy ugt r
standing that the radar on the border has been pulled so t aA mo .
our border does not have radar to spot planes crossing 1nto,_r1zzne
from Mexico. Even with radar, the drug traffickers were f1%1ng. e
mountain passes getting under radar so that they could notb.e pic eh
up. Where there is a fence on the bor@er there are @o]gs ig enoug
to drive trucks through it at regular intervals and it is also m{h e
understanding that the federal government has refused to repair the
holes. .

i i My
I would Tike to make a few suggestions as to how I persona
feel we can stop some of the drug trafficking from Mexico -into Arizona.

i
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~ Mr. Brian Bennett

Page Two
April 23, 1981

My first suggestion is that the federal government give aid to Mexico
to spray and destroy the marjuana crops. This, as you know, was done
in the past, but it is my understanding that since the users of
marijuana objected it was stopped. It would seem to me that if we
are attempting to stop the smuggling of marjuana into our country that
this would be one way to destroy the cropso that marjuana would not

be available and if it was smuggled into our country it just might
stop people from buying it since it had been sprayed. Second, the
government could change the so-called posse comitatus doctrine so

that the military could become involved in civil Taw enforcement, at
Teast pertaining to narcotics trafficking. Our national guard has to
fly so why can't they be used to fly on our borders to spot narcotics
traffickers. Qur guard flies jets and helicopters which would be of
great assistance in curtailing narcotics trafficking over our borders
with Mexico. Third, the federal statutes should be amended so that it
is-a mandatory 25 years in prison without possibility of parole when
anyone is convicted of transporting,-selling, or possession of marjuana,
cocaine, heroin, etc.. Fourth, the federal drug enforcement agencies
.such as customs, border patrol, DEA, ete. which investigate narcotics
matters, should be given more manpower to do the investigations into
drug trafficking and-users. Fifth, there should be a unified effort by
all federal agencies having narcotics jurisdiction. Jealousy among

- the agencies should be done away with as much as possible so that these

. drugs.

agencies can work together and share information not only with other -
federal agencies but with state and Tocg} authorities and eliminate the
problem as to which agency will get the glory of the arrest. Lastly,
money should be appropriated for drug education in our grade schools so
that the youth of our country can be told of the harmful effects of

If you wait until high school, usually it is too late and also,
due to the economy, etc. our school districts don't have the money to
implement these programs in the schools. These programs should not pull
any punches and "tell it like it is", as the kids say.

The above are some of my suggestions and I hope they are of help
to your committee.

Very truly yours,

Boffodics

- BOB CORBIN

Attorney General
BC:bec
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Mr. ZerererTl. The next witness is Mr. George Halpin, the
Regional Director of the Drug Enforcement Agency. Good morn-
ing, Mr. Halpin. Thank you very much for coming forward this

morning.

TESTIMONY OF GEORGE HALPIN, REGIONAL DIRECTOR OF
THE DRUG ENFORCEMENT ADMINISTRATION

Mr. HaLeiN. Good /morning, gentlemen, Thank you for inviting

me, , )
Mr. ZEFERETTI. You may submit your entire testimony, read it,

any way you feel comfortable.

Mr. HavpiN. What I think I would like to do, Mr. Chairman, is
submit my testimony. I would also like tc read portions of it and-
stand by for questions from you and other members of the commit-

tee.
Mr. ZereErRETTI. The entire statement will be submitted and ac-

cepted. You may follow any procedure you like.

Mr. Harpin. Thank you very much. Chairman Zeferetti and
members of the Select Committee on Narcotics Abuse and Control:
It is a pleasure to be here today to represent the Drug Enforcement
Administration at this hearing. The committee’s examination of
the availability-and abuse of drugs in the Los Angeles area and the
methods.and progress in controlling and dealing with this problem
is most timely. .

Unfortunately, our entire community is affected. Here in Los
Angeles, the headlines highlight the more glamorous aspects of the
drug abuse phenomenon, I see the uglier side of drug trafficking
that has an impact on every strata of society. I realize that none of
this is news to you, that you are all fairly well aware of the drug
situation. What I propose to speak to this morning is the Federal
enforcement perception of the dimensions of the drug trafficking
and abuse problems. ‘ ’ .

I would like to begin by butlining first who the DEA is, what our
role is. The DEA western regional office, which is located in Los
Angeles, has overall responsibility for Federal drug enforcement
efforts in eight States and the territory of Guam. The Los Angeles
district office is one of 4 district offices and 15 resident offices in
the region. The Los Angeles district office has primary jurisdiction
for the following counties: Los Angeles, Ventura, Santa Barbara,
San Luis Obispo, Kern, Orange, and San Bernardino. And the
western portion of Riverside County.

For that enforcement effort, the DEA western region has 78
agents available. Our primary geal is to identify, investigate, and
immobiiize those class I and II heroin traffickers who operate at
international and interstate levels. We also place considerable emi-
phasis on developing investigations to,implicate sources of supply.
The development of significant drug-velated financial and conspir-
‘acy.investigations directed at upper-echelon violators is also a high

‘priority. Secondary emphasis is directed toward class I and class II
violators who are involved in the production and/or distribution of
dangerous drugs, cocaine or cannabis. Another important element
of our program is the regulation of the licit drug industry in order
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has been the supply center of diverted drugs for other parts of the
United States. _

The popularity of cocaine has not diminished and this drug is
readily available throughout the area. Prices have been stable and
the purity at the street level generally ranges from 20-40 percent
although a number of seizures of very high purity—88-100 per-
cent—have been made. :

In many instances, the cocaine is carried directly to Los Angeles
from South America, primarily Colombia, Peru, and Ecuador. To
avoid detection, the more sophisticated cocaine smuggler has the
cocaine shipped to Mexico from South America. Once the trafficker
himself ha. arrived in Mexico from South America, he has a new
ticket issued showing oniy travel in Mexico, thus, he hopes to iook
much less suspicious. - ‘ ., ‘

One of the most popular substances of abuse in the Los Angeles
area is marihuana. Sources abound. Colombian, Jamaican, and
Mexican marihuana are regularly encountered throughout the
region. But the marihuana that is making the greatest impact
across the State of California is homegrown. It is sinsemilla, which
is Spanish for “without seeds.” The domestic commercial growing
of marihuana as an industry is a relatively new phenomenon,
perhaps only 5 years old. Already, the homegrown variety accounts
for an estimated 7 to 10 percent of the U.S. market. The rapid
growth is attributed to several factors working together: Sinsemilla
is extremely profitable, it is very potent, and effective deterrents to
cultivation are virtually nonexistent.

Sinsemilla is cultivated primarily in northern California coun-
ties—and Oregon and Hawaii—in greenhouses, on land owned by
the cultivators, and on publicly owned land, such as national parks
and forests. Some cultivators have extensive elaborate operations,
while others are backyard growers. The average yield of a single
sinsemilla plant is a pound or more—1,5600 hand-rolled joints of
very high THC content marihuana. Sales at that level conserva-
tively average about $1,500 a potity!, On an investment of $3,000 or
les3, a sinsemilla grower can easily produce a crop worth $100,000.

In response to this burgeoning problem, in 1977 and 1978 State
and local officials condtcted systematic eradication campaigns in
northern California. In 1979, the four northern counties most af-
fected—Mendocino, Hurmboldt, Lake, and Del Norte—formed a co-
alition with the State of California to request Federal assistance.
DEA responded with funding, the provision of two aircraft and
limited manpower under the aegis of a mobile task force directed
by the State bureau of investigation and narcotic enforcement

under California Attorney General George Deukmejian, this oper-
ation was aimed at the eradication of the sinsemilla fields, under-

cover penetration of the grower/violators and intelligence collec-
tion regarding all phases of cultivation and distribution. Operation
sinsemilla was renewed in 1980 and 15 additional counties partici-
pated in the eradication effort. oo B0

-The impact of operations of this type has been mixed. It has been
estimated that the latest phase of the operation wiped out 20-40

percent of the marihuana crop. It appears that in response to the

repeated eradication efforts there are fewer large-scale commercial
- fields of several hundred to several thousand plants. Instead, how-
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ever, some cultivators are relocating to other counties while others
have changed their method of operating to planting many small
gardens and expanding the use of greenhouses.

At the present time, the greatest concern of the sinsemilla culti-
vator is not law enforcement initiatives, but of being ripped off by

- other violators. The growers utilize elaborate safeguards to protect

their crops from poachers. There are little other deterrents. Few
convicted cultivators have received serious fines or have been given
meaningful sentences. If indeed convicted, most violators are given
suspended sentences or probation.

The United States now produces some of the finest marihuana
available. As long as there are consumers willing to pay the high
price commanded by sinsemilla, the number of growers willing to
risk what little judicial penalities are imposed will, no doubt, con-
tinue to increase.

DEA’s enforcement priorities are directed toward Southwest
Asian heroin, exploitation of the financial aspects of investigations
to promote asset removal, clandestine laboratories manufacturing
dangerous drugs, and the CENTAC program. The Los Angeles dis-
trict office directs its enforcement efforts toward Mexican and
other heroin; cocaine and marihuana transiting from Mexico; seiz-
ure and destruction of domestically grown marihuana, PCP, and
other hallucinogens. ' '

- As I noted earlier, we approach these enforcement priorities with
a variety of techniques. In many cases, the implementation of &
mobile task force or a CENTAC may be warranted. In other in-
staxaces, the institution of a special detail may better serve our
needs. V

DEA and U.S. Customs have each assigned one agent to the U.S.
Coast Guard Station at Long Beach in a joint investigative effort
targeted against the large-scale organizations which utilize stolen
aircraft and vessels to smuggle large quantities of contraband into
the United States. A DEA/FBI joint task force has been very
successful in investigating organized crime and drug trafficking in
the Los Angeles area. In addition, one of the enforcement groups
operating from the DEA Los Angeles district office (LADO) special-
izes in the investigation of clandestine laboratories. Other DEA
groups have combined their efforts with State and local officers to
address specific problems. The prison gang task force operating
from the LADO is comprised of one DEA agent and six State and
local officers. There is also a specific group comprised of 11 DEA
agents and 2 Los Angsles Police Department officers .who direct
their efforts specificaliy to Asian heroin. The airport group is
staffed with 13 DEA special agents, 9 L.A.P.D. officers, 5 Los Ange-
les Sheriff Department members and 1 State BINE officer. The
DEA relationship with all State and local agencies throughout
California is excellent. Additionally, DEA has been actively in-
volved in the Orange County detail, which has promoted many
coordinated enforcement efforts. - '

The Los Angeles area is a microcosm of the entire United States.
The economic and ethnic makeup of the population, the geographic
location, and the international facilities available in this area
}I?ean that every drug used across our country is available and used
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Thus, in Los Angeles we face a multitude of drug enforcement

situations. The interagency, infegrated multi-dimensional ap-

fter the
' ing afford us the opportunity to go a
g;%aei]?:gh:lrgna:folg?:or;gthe drugs trafficked, and the assets accrued |

tures. :
asfﬂf:fgﬁ ggel liigeacl)égﬁ faced with frustratmg challenges, we will

| this serious drug
do our best to have an impact on

egggﬁ\;;)lr 8?1 bghglf of the DEA staff here in Los Angeles, we th?;ﬁ(

gou and the Select Committee for your interest in our miss

I would be pleased to answer any questions you may have at this

tHEll\e.flr I—Ialpm S prepared statement follows.]

P

T e e,

R,

7

o’

pu»&.s;»v\he’,x.;.».,,;“Mwﬁ.m}uu&n-vbm&y‘-—“ g

I

L R
P

B e : R —

41

PREPARED STATEMENT OF GEORGE HALPIN REGIONAL DIRECTOR, NESTERN REGIONAL

OFFICE, DRUG ENFORCEMENT ADMINISTRATION U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE

Chairman Zeferettj and Members/of the Select .Committee on
Narcotics Abuse and Comntrol: It is a pleasure’ to be here
ktoday to represent the Drug Enforcement Admlnlstratlon at
thls hearlng. The Committee’s examlnatlon of the avalla-
bility and abuse of drugs 4in the Los Angeles area and the
‘methods and progress in controlllng and deallng with thls
problem is most’ tlmely

"Here in

Unfortunately, our entlre communlty is affected,

Los Angeles, the headllnes hlghllght the more glamorous
aspects of the drug abuse phenomenon

tive as the DEA Western Reglonal Dlrector,

side of drug trafflcklng that has an 1mpact on every strata

wof society. I realrae that none of thls is, news to. you,
that you are aii falrly well aware Of the drug 51tuatlon

What I propose to speak to this morning is +he Fed-

eral enforcement perceptlon of the dlmen51ons of the drug s

trafflcklng and abuse problems°

3
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I would like to begin by outlining first who the DEA is;

what our role is, what our goals are, and what our accom—
plishments have been. The DEA Western Reglonal Office;,

which 1s located in Los Angeles,

for Federal drug enfbrcement efforts in eight states and the

territory of .Guam. The Los Angeles District Office ig one

of four district offices and 15 re51dent offlces in the

©
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But from my perspec-

I see the ugller

has overall respon51b111ty
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region. The Los Angeles District Office has primary juris_
diction for the following counties: ”LOS’Angeles, Ventura, .
Santa Barbara, San Luis Obispo, Kern; Orange and San Berna-
dino. 1In addltlon to the personnel working to support ‘the
entlre reglon s efforts, there are 110 DEA employees in Los
Angeles. Of these, 70 are speCLal agents, 12 are compliance
investigators;andts are intelligence analysts.l Additionally,
some of these DPA Spec;al Agents participate in Feveral

task force type efforts ' in which state and local offlcers

join forces dlrectly»w1th DEA.

Our primary goal ls to identify, investigate and immobilize
those Class I and II hero1n trafflckers who operate at inter-
natlonal and 1nterstate levels. We also place considerable
emphasms on developlng lnvestlgations to‘implicate sources
of supply. The development,of significant drug-related fi-
nancial and consplracy 1nvest1gatlons dlrected at upper-
echelon v101ators is also a high priority. Secondary empha=-
sis is dlrected toward Class I and II v1olators who are
inyolved in the production and/or distribution of dangerous
drugs, cocaine or cannabis. Another:impertant element of
our proéram is the regulation of the licit drug industry in
morder to prevent diversien of controlled substances from the

legitimate market.

Los Angeles has a reputation as a big "consuming" town, much
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as Miami does as ga "souree"vtown. This city is "flooded"

with drugs -- cocaine, pcP and marihuana are everywhere,

dangerous drugs are readily available, and the use of heroin

1s increasing.

)

This"adeeleratlon in Heroin abuse is not attributed to the
street addict who uses low-quality brown heroin, but rather
to the more affluent elements who are finding it very
fashionable to smoke heroin. The her01n preferred for
smoking is fPersian‘Tan", a gram of which sells for about
$600 and ranges in purity from 70-100 percent. "Persian
Tan", aka Southwest Asian heroin; and "China White", South-
east Asian heroln, are available on the street.

/ : .
Interestingly, there is a new variety of heroin available -~
"European White", which is actually Southwest A51an heroin
that is processed in converszon laboratories in Italy.
Mex1can brown heroin has always been a problem in Los
Angeles; howevér, this area has been experlen01ng a resur-
gence of Mexican heroin. For the time being, the price has
remained stable, as has tnefst;eet purity, which remains
between 1 and 2 percent. Wholesale purity of Mexican heroin

runs about 7.0 to 18 percent.
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Several monéhsvago, we were“klso contending with a problem'
caused by "synthetic heroin", which at the time was erron-
ecusly called "China White;" There were an esgtimated 30
plus overéose deaths and injuries as a result of consumption
of this substance, later identified as ﬁhe methyl analog of
fentanyl. As an analgesic, this synthetic substance is

A
estimated to be 150 times as potent as morphine.

Dangerous drugs are an integral component of the abuse and

enforcement picture. LPhencyclidine (PCP) is abundant -

- throughout the greater Los Angeles community. Cigarettes

saturated with this hallucinogen can be purchased for about
$30 a piece. Liquid PCP sells for about $150 an ounce.
Analogs of PCP and of é PCP precursor, piperdine, are being
seen in increasing numbers. There is also c¢landestine manu-
facture of methamphetamine in the areavand iﬁ surrounding
jurisdictions. LSD is also easily procurable in the Los
Aﬁgeles area. The Los Angeles Sheriff's_Department reports
that they receive lO-lSALSD criﬁe 1lab ;ubmissions per month.

[§]

Additionélly; the LASD crime lab reports that, in contrast

s

to negligible "magic mushroom" exhibits a year ago, there

are now approximately 8-10

\ilocybin mushroom exhibits
submitted monthly. These arégprimarily from the Western
beach a:ga. Methaqualone, beﬁter@known as Quaalude, is
avaiiable, although not always abéhdant, and its use con-

tinues to increase. In several major seizures, the purported
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methaqualone later proved to be diazepam (Valium). The
price per dosage unit of methaqualone is usually $3 to $5,
and in some instances is as high as $7 to $8 per dosage

unit.

During a major investigation involving 30 agents of the DEA
Los Angeles District Office and 20 Los Angeles County Deputy
Sheriffs, over 3,000 hours were spent on’surveillance

during an 11 day period. On December 17, }977, 19 search
warrants were executed for various locations and vehicles
resulting in the seizure of approximatély 310 pounds of PCP,
700 éounds of PCC, 11 tons of the necessary chemicals tou
make methaqualone; a twelve station pill press, and three
vehicles. The chemicals, when converted to the finished
illicit product, Qould have had a street’ value of $300

million.

In addition to clandestine synthesis and/or_tabléting,'as in
the case of methaqualone, dangeroué drugs also enter the
market after being diverted from legitimate sources. The
diversion of legitimately manufactured drugs is guite broad
in California, but is more pronounced in Los Angeles than in
San Francisco or San D}ego. DEA investigations have re-
vealed Ehat; in some cases, Los Angeles has_been the suppiy
center of diverted druds-for other parts of the United

States., We have been able‘Eo determine that this diversion
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is highly organized and involves staggering quag;ip%ggioﬁ

&

drugs and money. P

As the following chdrt shows, the "get rich quick" temptation

is great.

Legit. Wholesale (cost to pharmacist) Illicit Retail

Quaalude $.17 per d.u. $9,00 retail

300 mg

Preludin 75 mg $.32 per d.u. $8.00-$10.00 per d.u.

Tuinal 3 gr. $.11 per d.u. $8.00 per d.u,'

$.20 per d.u. $11.00 per d.u.

Ritalin 20 mg

Biphetamine-20 $.30 per d.u. $4.00-$5.00 per d.u.

Dilaudid 4 mg $.22 per d.u. $25-835.00 per d.u,

Dilaudid 4 mg tablet, a Schedule II narcotic, is a drug of
choice among heroin addicts. The total amount of diversion in
dosage units is less than the controlled substances mentioned
above. However, the price markup is astronomical.

.The primary source of diversion is organized "Script Mills",
which employ physicians whose sole function is to write con-
trolled subst;nce prescriptions for other than legitimate
medical needs. DEA hgs developed information which substan-
tiates direct links between the ownership of these clinics
and at least 100 pharmacies which have operated in the Los

Angeles area. When enforcement actions neutralize either a

(?:Z‘

doctor or a pharmacy, they are quickly replaced.
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The individual pharmacist who covers the {diversion of con-
trolled substances through false burglarykclaims is another
form of diversion. Forged\prescriptions and burglaries of =~
retail pharmacies are two other common methods: of diversion.

Additionally, in the last year we have noted an increase-ih

armed robberies of wholesale“drﬁg distributors.

The pobulaxity of cocaiﬁé has not diminished and this drug
is readily available tpr;ughout the area. Prices have been
stable and the purity at the street level generally ranges
from 20-4Q percent although a number of seizures of very

high purity (88-100 percent) have been made.

In many instances, the cocaine is carried directly to Los

Angeles from South America, primarily Colombia and Peru. To

Q

avoid detection, the more sophisticated cocaine smuggler has

the cocaine shipped to Mexico from South America. Once the

Vid
trafficker himself has arrived in Mexico from South America,
he has a new ticket issued showing only travel in Mexico,

thus, he hopes to look much less suspicious.

o

Q

One of the most popular substance of abuse in the Los Angeles

area is marihuana. Sources abound. Colombian, Jamaican and
¥
Mexican marihuana are regularly encountered throughout the

region. But the marihuana that is making the greatest
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impact across the state of California is homegrown. It is

sinsemilla, which is Spanish for without seeds. The doméstic
commercial growing of marihuana as an industry is a rela-

tively new phenomenon, perhaps only five years old. Already,
the homegrown variety accounts for an estimated 7-10 percent

)

of the U. S. market. The rapid growth is attributed to |

several factors working together: sinsemilla is extremely

profitable, it is very potent, and effective deterrents to

cultivation are virtually non-existent.

Sinsemilla is cultivated primarily in northern California
counties (and Oregon and Hawaii), in greenhouses, on land
owned by the cultivators, and on publically-owned land, such

as national forests. Some cultivators have extensive

elaboraée operations, while others are backyard growers.
The average yield of a single sinsemilla plant is a pound or
more -- 1,500 hand-rolled joints of very high THC content
marihuana. Sales at that level conservatively average about

$1,500 a pound. On an investment of $3,000 or less, a

_sinsemilla grower can easily produce a crop worth $100,000.

In fespoﬁse to’ this burgeoning problem, in 1977 and 1978

State andolocal officials conducted systematic eradication
campaigns in nq;thern California.
counties most affected (Mendocino,vHumboldt, iakewand Del

Norte) formed a coalition with the State of California to
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request Federal assistance. DEA responded with'%unding, the
provision of two aircraf&fand-limited manpower under the
aegis of a mobile task force, "Operation Sinsemilla."
Directed b§ the State Bureau Qf“Investigatio; and Narcotic
Enforcement (BINE) under California”Attorney Ganeral George
Deukmejian, this operation was aimgd at the eradication of

the sinsemilla fields, undercover éenetration of the grower/
\ i

violators and intelligence collectionhiggarding all phases

of cultivation and distribution. Qperation Sinsemilla was

renewed in 1980 and 15 additional counties participated in

the eradication effort.

The impact of operations of this type has been mixed. It

" has been estimated that the latest phase of the operation

wipéd out 20-40 percent'pf théﬁﬁarihuana crop. It appears

).
\
b

that in response to the“cépeated eradication efforts there

are fewer large-scale comygrcigijfields of éeveral hundred
to several thousand plants.' Instead, however, some culti=-
vators are- relocating to 6t§er counties while others have
chéﬁ&ed their method of ope%ating to planting wmany small

gardens and expanding the use of greenhouses.

N
R

/ ) AN ,
Atlthe present time, the greaéest'concern of the sinsemilla

cultivator is not law enforcement initiatives, but of being’

"ripped~off" by other violators. The growers utilize

-9=
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elaborate safeguards to protect their .crops from poachers.

There are little other deterrents. Few convictéad cditivators

have received serious fines or have been given meaﬁingful

¢

sentences. If indeed convicted, most violators are given
. suspended sentences or probation. = T
. L ]
The United States.nowtd;oduces some of the finest marihuana a
-Zzvailable. As long as there are consumers willing to pay

the high price commanded by einsemillai the number of growers
A 0
s willing to risk what little judicial penalties are lmposed
B
will,

no doubt, continue to increase.

N L . L'
“
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DEA's enforcement priorities are directed toward Southweat

o

Asian heroin, exploltatlon of the financial aspects of in-
-vestlgatlons to promote

: S
tories manufacturing dangerous drugs and the Centac program.

JThe Los Angeles District Office directz its enforcemenh

efforts toward Mexican and other herdéin; cocaine/and mari-

@ e . huana trxansiting from Mexico; seizure and déstruction of

i\ domeétically—growg;marihuana, and the investigation of the
"Yakuza," Japanese organlzed crlme.
SN

N S . . \t*¥ ' nE

As I notegearlier, we approach these enforcement priorifies

k! with a variety of techniques. In many cases, the implemen-
‘ . i «© a
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tatlon of . a moblle task force or - a Centac may be warranted.
In other 1nstances, the institution of a spec1al detail may '

better serve our needs. For example, because the ut@liza#

tion of air cargo is a promihent Qode of shipping drugs to

the United States from foreign sources, DEA has placed

specially-trained personnel at the Los Angeles International
) oy .

Airport. These spécial agents work in conjunction with

U. S. Customs Patrol and\Inspectlon Unlts. Investigative.

efforts have successfully been dlrected against Southeast

Asian heroin trafficking organizations and against cocaine -
smuggling operations. g

2oa

DEA and U. S,oCustoms have each assigned one agent to the U.S.

Coast Guard station at Longbeach in a joint investigative
effort targeted aéainst the large-scale organizations which

utilize stolen aircraft and vessels-to smuggle large  quan-

W

] tities of contraband into the United States. A DEA/FBI

joint task force has been very successful in investigatiné

brganized crime and drug trafficking in the Los Angeles
areé. In adaition, one of the enforéement groups operating

from the DEA Los Angeles District Offﬂée (LADO) specializes

in the investigation of clandestine labératories. Other DEA - -

groups have'combineé their e=fforts with State and :local

officers te address specific problems. - The Prison Gang Task

S Fepce»operating from the LADO is comprised of one DEA agent

and six,Stage and local officers. Theré,is also a specific - o
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group comprised of eleven DEA, agents and two Los Angeles
Police. Department officers who direct their efforts specifi-
cally to Asian he¥oin. The Airport q%oup which I mentioned
earlier is staffed with 13 DEA special agents, nine LAPD

officers, five Los Angeles Sheriff Department members and

one State BINE officer,.. ThevDEA relationship with all State

and local agencies throughout California is excellent.
additionally,. DEA has been actively involved in the Orange

County Detail, which has promoted many coordinated enforcement

effortss

The Los Ahgeles area is a microcosm of the entire United

States. The econom§c and ethnic makeup of the population,

tHe geographic location, and the international facilities
available in this area mean that every drug used across our

country is available and used here.

Thus, in Los Angelesfwé face a multitude of drug enforcement

situations. I believe we have ma@e progress, although we

still face coﬂsiderable challenges. The interagencyi inte-

grated multi~dimensional approaches we are using afford us

the opportunity to go after the upper~echelon v1olator, the

drugs trafflcked,‘and the assets acrued as proceeds of -
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illegal ventures.

H

Although we are often faced with frustrating challénges, we

bl

will endeavor to do our best to have an impact on this

Jserious drug problem. On behalf of the DEA staff here in

Los Angeles, weé thank vou and éhe Select Committee for your

interest in our mission. this concludes my

-

formal remarks; Iryﬁﬁld be pleased to answer any questions

Géntlémen,

7
you may have.

y

/ <

- Mr. ZEFERETTI Thank you, Mr. Halpin. Mr Halpin, were you

~ sitting out there when the attorney general was testlfymg"

Mr. HaLpin. Yes, sir, I was.

Mr. ZerergTT1. Did you hear his comments about the policies of
the agency and the lack of cooperation.as a result of policies.
Would you like to comment on that, please?

Mr. Havpin. Yes; I would. °

A am not real sure where the attorney general was speaking
f’rom, because it was a’little bit surprising. I think with regard to
one of the things he mentioned, he was referring to the Privacy

_Act, which requires disclosure. ‘And I think when he. inentioned
'somethlng to the effect that when information is ext.;hanged with
his agency, that it requires several things be done, he is referring
_to the Privacy Act, which is a fact, the law. As regard to DEA and

._"iflfnfs State narcotic agency, partlcularly WSIN, when WSIN opened

up its operation in Sacramento, Calif., the Drug Enforcement Ad-
ministration immediately assigned an analyst to the complete dis-
posal of the attorney general in his operation of WSIN. He works
for all intents and purposes at the WSIN facility to help them in
any way that he can. We have participated—I know of no time
upon being requested by BINE for assistance that we have failed to
give it to them. So I am not real sure I know exactly what he is
talking about.

Mr. ZerFereTTI. I think he Went a little further down. the road
than just the Prlvacy Act and the transferring of information. I
think he also mentioned assistance in personnel and that kind of
an interception kind of activity that might be useful—because of

" budgetary constraints or whatever it might be, he did not have
- people around, and he needed assistance. I think that is part of the
testimony, anyway, that he was relamng to. i ;

Mr. HavpiN., Mr. Chairman, again, I was hoplng maybe some
specific things would come. He did indicate that he would be happy .
to-do some followup on the matter, Very honestly, I am a little bit
at a loss. I do not know spemﬁcally what he is driving af. I know in

o - & . ‘»T
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several of his offices we work very closely. His San Francisco office
is larger. We probably work less in San Francisco. Yet in Sacra-
mento, we work more. In Fresno, we work together in almost every
investigation that is accomplished.

Mr. RaiisBack. If the chairman would yield. I have the feeling
that he was talking about inter-Federal governmental cooperation.
In other words, I thought he meant problems between the Custom’s
and the DEA. He did not single them out, though.

Mr. Harpin, Congressman, he did mention that there appeared
to him to be some competition between the Federal agencies. I
have worked extensively as a manager in New York and Chicago,
San Dlego, Washington, D.C., and here. I say without reservation,
cooperation at the Federal, State and local level hers, and I think
it will be supported by people following me here, is second to none.
I have been here 4 years, previously as deputy regional director,
most recently as regional director. I know of not one time when
there has been a major issue which was not immediately resolved.
And I know of not very many which I would consider major issues.
We work in task forces. We meet monthly in a program at the
working level. And we meet quite often at my level.

Mr. GiLMAN. Would the gentleman yield. v

Mr. ZeFErETTI. Just let me touch on this one area. When you say
you meet, are you talking that meetings go on between the various
Federal agencies? Are you talking about meetings that occur with
the State agency along with the three responsible agencies that the
Federal Government has?

Mr. HarriNn. We met both, both at Federal, and both Federal,
State, and local.

Mr. GiLmAN. If you are meeting so frequently, meeting together,
how is it that this issue has not come up before? Apparently it was
bothering the attorney general.

Mr. HavrpiN. Congressman, as I previously stated, it came some-
what as a surprise to me. I just cannot comment on something that
I am unaware of.

Mr. GiLmaN. I would hope you would pursue it further and see if
we could get to the bottom of what the problem is.

"Mr.-HavrpIN. I would be very happy to.
- Mr. GitmaN. Thank you.

Mr. ZEFERETTI. Mr: Halpin, is there a strike force organization or
operation going on right now? If there is, who participates in it?

Mr. HALPIN. Yes, there is, in answer to your question. Jim Hen-
derson is the attorney in charge. You are speaking of the organized
crime strike force. DEA, FBI, Secret Service, Department of Labor,
IRI% I %elieve that is it. : :

r. ZEFERETTI. Have they concluded anything? Have you come
out with any kind of record, any kind of a?t;ivitg as far a{; lending
itself to that' kind of strike force? :

t_Mr. }f‘f[ALEiIlN. Y?S:i sir, \grefha}f‘;ve. Our DEA, FBI task force oper-
atlon nas channeled most of its investigations through th it.

Mr. ZerereTTI. Mr. Railsback. g ,ﬁg at unit

Mr. RAILSBACK. Could I ask if you had an opportunity to make’
some recommendations which would help the drug enforcement—

‘whether it be manpower, equipment, or some kind of an intelli-

gence system—what in the Los' Angeles area would you recommend
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that you need? In ther words, I know that you are trying to deal
with class I and class II heroin cases, and you have given them
your highest priority. I realize that you have a secondary priority
with other dangerous drugs. What I am wondering'is are we really
equipped, are we still understaffed, and do you need more people?
Where are your deficiencies, and where could we be helpful to you?
- Mr. HALPIN. As [— ,

Mr. RansBack. Forget that Dave Stockman may be looking over
your shoulder. In other words, we will take care of that. We are
the legislators. Tell us what you really need.

Mr. HarpiN. I appreciate the opportunity. As I testified previous-
ly, sitting here in Los ‘Angeles with the Mexican brown heroin
border 100 miles away, with Honolulu being the touchdown point
for Southeast Asian heroin, with growing a better brand of mari-
huana up in northern California than is produced in other parts of
the world, with the birthplace of the clandestine LSD,
methamphetamine and PCP at peak levels, I sometimes feel as
General Custer must have as he crossed the mountain to the Little
Bighorn. We are overwhelmed by drug abuse in this area.

Now, obviously the key to that answer, and I would be negligent
if I did not say it, is first of all we need some more people. I feel
that the western region gets its appropriate share of what re-
sources are available within DEA. But, in reality, more people is
not necessarily going to do a lot of good, when the court system is
not able to handle what we are bringing to them now. The U.S.
attorney here is short-handed in prosecutors. The strike force attor-
ney, which you mentioned previously, has lost positions. We are
literally standing in line, in many instances, to get on with the
judicial processes of the investigations that we are presently han-
dling. Many things bother us as we go through.

The attorney general touched on something that I would like to
touch on. Sitting also in California is probably one of the greatest
resources available. We have a tremendous amount of Navy facili-
ties, Marine, Air Force facilities within the region that are doing
things. What I would suggest they do, what has been suggested
they do, would -not hamper anything that they are doing. All we
are asking that they be able to commit some of their sophisticated
equipment when they are doing their routine assignments to assist
the Coast ‘Guard, perhaps, in the pinpointing of ships and aircraft
that should be looked at. '

Mr. RAILSBACK. So what you are really saying is that maybe

some of the legislation pending right now may be very relevant
and very helpful to your effort in this particular area? ‘
Mr. HarpiN. Absolutely. Which includes many things that have
been touched upon. The bail/bond issue is ludicrous. We have
people in this environment that we have brought into court, that
jump million ,dollar bonds, that we can predict with a reasonable
amount of certainty that we will not see this gentleman again, at
least without a long search. ‘

- Mr. RamsBack. Do you agree generally with the comment made

by.the attorney general, that a relatively small percentage of traf-
fickers and dealers who are convicted ever spend any time in jail

_or prison. Thirty-two percent he said was the figure of, I gather,

i
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convicted dealers or traffickers who spend any time in jail. Do you
have that problem? ' . ot thad T
Mr. Harpin. Congressman Railsback, I am happy to repo at,
do not see that big a problem with the Federal judicial systerpl.l 0
see some inconsistent sentencing, which I am sure we Wwill see
forever. I have seen things that I thought an 1nd1v1dua1A gai %wen
probation when his record would reflect he should not. Bu %ar}
honestly state that I do not think we are only getting 32 percent o
our people that we bring into the system, into the pengl program.
Mcr. RaLsBack. What kind of a backlog do you have? You men-

mol{ldi(.i ?—Igigm(.)gl am not real sure exactly what the backlog is.

» i ld-—- . .

Agl\?llrr.l’ %%X?I?SBACK. Could you chﬁck }t{;lhat aild provide that to us?
_ HarpiN. I would be more than happy to. o .

ll\ég EILMAN. Would the gentleman yield. In providing that 1nfo(11'~/
mation, could you give us the number of cases that are backlogge 2
and the amount of time they are backlogged within the Depart-

ice for prosecution.

mild}i.ofﬁlggﬁ Allpright. I would like to state for the record,
Congressman, that was not a criticism of the Central District of
California. It is a fact.

[The information requested, follows:] )

The Federal courts in Los Angeles do not have a backlog of drug cases.

Mr. HaLPIN. We recognize that it exists in other jurisdictions.
Alivérwhat we are tryinggi':g do is focus attention—if there is a need
for additional personnel, let us get to the bottom of that problem.

Mr. Giman. Thank you.

" . Mr. Dornan. .
il\élﬁz %‘lggfxiﬁl Th;nk you, Mr. Chairman. Mr. Halpin, could we

clearly on where you could use assistance from the U.S.
Kili‘c%&ig U.s. IB\TIIarine Corps, Eil Toro Air Force Base, ar‘;d Gun
Fightei- City down there at Miramar, the Naval air station? 1 ﬂevg
the Southern California area as an Air Force fighter pilot fqrt
years. Many times we would go up, a flight of four, split up 1n10
two elements, and hunt down one another. We would scrambg
over the salt sea against naval aircraft. We would go out to sea an
coordinate looking for Navy ships who were doing friendly exer-
cises. Are you saying that all of these resources could be used ﬁn a
very real way to scramble against, and hunt down some of g %se
aircraft and ships that are importing drugs into this Nation? We
could get the same quality of training, if not better, because it is %
real exercise and not a mock exercise. This could be done Wlthoud
infringing upon the civil rights of any of the citizens of the Unite
States, with just a minimal rew;_‘ite.of som(?E of 0u11;3 laws, keeping In

i nstitutional protections for innocent peopie. -
mll\l}ldf,c?{ALpiN. Basic?ally, Congressman, that is exactly what I am
saying. I do not want to create the impression that I know any%
thing about flying nor do I know anything about sophistication o
radar and the electronic technology that goes with it, What 1 have‘
in mind specifically is that I am aware that the Coast Guard radaz
is substandard, for instance, to the tra_fficker radar that we have
seen in the vessels that they have 1ntercegted, that we have
worked with them. That the slaborate electronic machinery that is
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available on some of these vessels, we do not have the same capa-
bility. I am suggesting that the Navy, through its technology, does
have this capability, and I am assuming the Air Force does.

I am also suggesting that these units do fly missions such as you
have just described, and in doing so, what is wrong, how ‘does it
infringe upon a citizen’s right if they say, we have a target over
here, do not know what it is, Coast Guard, but this is the latitude,
this is the longitude, you might want to look at it. And that is what
I have in mind. ‘

Mr. DornaN. I think it is an obvious and super suggestion. Could
you describe please the intergovernmental task force that you have
at the Los Angeles International Airport? I know that you partici-
pate, and the Los Angeles Police Department participates. I hope
the Los Angeles sheriffs participate. I am surprised they turned
down our invitation to appear here today. I am more than sur-
prised. I am trying to get an answer. Also are there any State
Jurisdictions that participate with you in this task force?

Mr. Harpin. Yes. The task force consists of the L.A. Police De-
partment, the DEA, the Los Angeles Sheriff’s Office, and BINE. It
is a little bit unusual. We went into the thing with the agréement
that not one of us is going to be supervisor of the others, that we
were all mature and professional law enforcement, I think policy
administration officials would have told us it will not work, you
have to have a general, and you cannot have all generals. Very
honestly I am happy to report to my knowledge we have been
extremely successful in our operation at L.A. I consider it one of
the better units. We have not had confrontation to my knowledge
of any kind. They work all kinds of cases. It simply is whatever
will benefit the investigation to the utmost. '

Mr. DornaN. All right. Would you again indicate—I think you
have done this already but I want to hear it again—how we might
help this type of coordination of all the major airport terminals
and port facilities across the country? Are you writing a prospectus
of how this has worked at Los Angeles Airport?

Mr. Harrein. No, I have not. One of the major problems in all
airports, certainly within our region, in the past, has been the
obtaining of space at the airport compound. It has been quite a
large problem. Space is at a premium at your major airport com-
plexes. And obtaining it is extremely difficult. L.A., for instance, is
jammed in. We almost have desks on desks. That is the only way
we can be close to responding. That is our major problem. We
certainly could use additional communication facilities at some of
them. Some of them are not hooked up to our teletype system. This
would all be of great advantage to our airport operations. I think
you gentlemen are aware, for the most part, the airport operations
throughout the United States have been very successful.

Mr. DornAN. Yes. My office is at the airport, because that is the
center of my congressional district. If I could just take 1 second, if .
the chairman would allow me, to footnote something as our distin-
guished ranking minority members did on People magazine. Your
task force invited a member of my staff to come over and see how
you operated. By sheer coincidence he arrived 10 minutes after the
arrest of a well known television personality. And I thought it was
very poor taste for this highly successful national magazine that I

i g s e

H
1

R - i - ) TR



58

receive in my home, to infer, when they knew otherwise, that
somehow or other I, through my staffer,”had targeted a Hollywood
personality through your task force. My office member was not
present. And it was at your invitation that we came over and
observed the operation, as it is natural to invite the Congressman
whose office is at the L.A. Airport. If there is any way we can work
with you in the future, we are going to pursue a line of questions
later with the Customs officials because of some destructive sugges-
tions which will really cripple the Customs operation at the L.A.
Airport and other airports. I hope this is one thing this committee
can help to prevent. Thank you very much for your testimony.

‘Mr. ZerererT. Mr. Halpin, you have mentioned a class I and II
violator. Can you tell me the difference between a class I and II
violator? I do not quite understand what that means.

Mr. HaLpin. Well, very simply, in general terms, it is the signifi-
cance of the trafficker. The I and II, I do not happen to have right
at my hand right now, but it deals in amount, percentage of drugs
of which they deal in, in purity and amount, and it also deals in
such things as whether the man is primarily in charge of financing
the operation, did he put the money forward, did he in fact operate
the courier, do they in fact have distribution authority in the
general area that they work in.

Mr. ZerErETTI. Do the courts pick it up that way as a class I
violator, with a heavier kind of charge or whatever it might be?

Mr. HavPIN. Normally what we have done in that area, class I
and class II, as you have indicated, are numbers. Generally what is
done is the U.S. attorney will take time to expand upon and
elaborate, just as I did, as to what role the individual has played, if
possible the amount of money that he has made; for instance, in
one case, we were able to show $30 million. This impressed the
sentencing judge. So we do do that, particularly in the central
district of California. )

Mr. ZererETTI. Thank you, Mr. Halpin. Mr. Gilman.

Mr. GiLMAN. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Mr. Halpin, how long
have you been with the Drug Enforcement Administration?

Mr. Havein. I have been 23 years with it and its predecessor
agencies. v : .

Mr. GiLman. We certainly welcome your expertise and your anal-
ysis of the problem out here.

You mentioned that you are meeting quite regularly with some
of the other heads of agencies, State and Federal and local enforce-
ment. Do any of these meetings concern themselves with long
range strategy planning? ' »

Mr. HaLrPiN. Yes, sir. '

Mr. Gizman. Or are they mostly concerned about the immediate
critical problems? v

Mr. HatpiN. In answer to your question, yes, sir, they do. The
ta§k force committee, or as we call it the Narcotics Intelligence
Network, which is formed in Los Angeles, for instance, consists of
DEA, the Los Angeles sheriffs, BINE, Police Department of Los
Angeles. Now, the executive committee, which consists of the com-
mander of the narcotic unit, the agent in charge of the district
office, people of the same magnitude as me, meet and bring to the
executive committee targeted individuals, where the DEA, for in-
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stance, or the Los Angeles Police Department or the sheriff, in
many instances all of them will come in and say this is somebody
that we know that is operating within the Los Angeles greater
area, this is everything we know about him. We will go through
the photographs, charts, pedigree, history. Then there is a decision
rendered as to what is the target that the task force will work on.
And all the people will get together then. We house that at the Los
Angeles District Office of DEA, and proceed to work that target
collectively. ‘

Mr. GiLmaN. Mr. Halpin, what do you call this working group?

Mr. Havprin. It is the NIN task force.

Mr. GiLmaN. How frequently does it meet?

Mr. HaLpIiN. Monthly. v ot

Mr. GiuMmaN. You are describing to us the planning of an oper-
ation of a seizure. What about some of the long-range planning for
strategy for the whole region. How do your long-range plans fit
into a national strategy? Do you have occasion to sit and make
some long-range plans? For example, what are we going to do over
the next 3 or 4 years to try to limit the amount of trafficking, to
try to eradicate some of the production, and to attempt to be more
effective along the border areas, and that sort of thing. What sort
of long-range planning do you do? Do you have an opportunity to
do any of that? Or is most of your time devoted to meeting the
immediate critical problem? We have spotted this major trafficker,
and now we are going to go about eliminating this trafficker or
that trafficker. Do you have an opportunity to engage in long-range
strategy planning?

Mpr. HALPIN. Yes, sir, we do in some degree.

Mr. GiLMAN. To-what degree, and with whom?

Mr. HavpiN., Primarily we do it with the various agencies. We
have a group that meets with Coast Guard, Customs, DEA, on
maritime and aircraft smuggling. From that we may form and do
form a unit to collect intelligence to feed it in. We may go from
that to a request to headquarters for long-term planning, funding a
mobile task force, of which headquarters will provide the funding.
Just recently we started one with IRS, DEA, Customs, U.S. Attor-
ney’s Office, involving a major group here. In that area we do. We
also obviously listen to the great white father in Washington, D.C,,
who gives us some direction, and we participate in submitting into
him a situation as we see it, as it relates to the national program.

Mr. GiLMAN. When was the last you took part in a national
program conference of trying to develop a national program?

Mr. HavriN. It would have been the SAO/SWA program.

Mr. GiLMAN. When was that?

Mr. HavLrPiN. About 1% years ago.

Mr. GiLmMAN. Have you developed any master plan for this
region, on how best to fight narcotics in this area? Is there some
master plan? . :

Mr. HarpiN. I have a work plan that I put forth once a year.

Mr. GiLMAN. Is that work plan developed with the cooperation of
local enforcement people, or is that something that you have devel-
oped vsrr)ith Washington and attempt to implement here in your own
region’

Mr. HaLriN. Certainly local input is sought.
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Mr. AN. To develop that plan?
%g %I.;prm. Primaril;g in the intelligence area, Congressman.
Mr. GiLMmAN. Is that plan a 1l-year plan?
. Havpin, It is a 1-year plan. '
%i GiLMAN. Is that part of a national planning effort?
Mr. HaLriN. No; it is’ primarily the western region plan. -
Mr. GiLMAN. It is your own plan. Have you seen any natlona?
plan at all, where your own unit fits into some national strategy?
Mr. HarpiN. I am not sure I understand fully the question.
Mr. GILMAN. Well, what I am seeking is, has there been an317
effort within the agency to try to develop some sort of a nationa
program where your region would fit into that national program
for a long-range program, not just an immediate effort. y .
Mr. Havrin. Certainly there has. Clandestine laboratories, pd
which we have had storefront operations throughout the Unétg ‘
States. Brown heroin, we recently met with the regions involve 11n
brown heroin, to discuss what we might be able to do. That plan
was submitted to Mr. Bensinger and came back out. \
Mr. GiLmaN. When you say we met, who is the we? o
Mr. HavriN. The “we” in that instance 1vfgas the regional directors
i ity, Dallas, Chicago, and myself. : .
Ofl\l\é/[IﬁXI_(cE:}(I)LCI\J/IIA}I:L And out of that came some sort of a regional
? _ o ,
prcna/%;a .'I[-IIIALPIN. There came out a program s}Lllbm}tted for headquar-
ider a major program for brown heroin. A
tell'\s,d;?.() é?lll,lleITAN. Was ‘E]here a major program then adopted for brown
heroin? * o - ]
. HarpIN. We are in a phase of continuing to collect informa
tiol\r/frabout brown heroin. We just recently submitted our plan to
DEA headquarters and continue to collect information and to mon-
itor brown heroin seizures throughout the United States and report
h availability. . .
m?\ﬁ. lélgllzflAN. How g’ften are you consulted with natlonal plan-
ning? You said you met 1% years ago. Then you have had thlg
regional meeting on brown heroin. How often are you consulte
i tional strategy? 5 _ .
Wllt\/}Ilr?l&Il-Ifl?PIN. Quit%yregulariy. Regional directors meet with Mr.
Bensinger probably quarterly. We discuss many ¢things, among
uld be national policy. ' o
thle\gll‘.vg)ILMAN. You menli::)ion that Guam is part of your jurisdiction.
When our committee was last in Guam, they were having 801}119
problem with incarceration, because of very limited prison facili-
ties, and as a result some of the local jurisdictions were reluctant
to convict and imprison. Are you still confronted with that sort of a
blem in Guam? . ,
pri\)[ir? HAvrrPIN. Unfortunately the prison system has not changei)d
much, Congressman. However, many of the people, we think, pro <i
ably have been transferred to island prisons here, in the Unite
States. I am happy to report that heroin availability is down tre-
mendously in Guam. We are seeing a lot more marihuana. But the
Southeast Asian heroin price has escalated, and availability seems
reased quite a bit. o
tol\hd?je(ﬁiﬁz&; H%W much of your personnel is devoted to the
Mariana Group? ‘ ‘
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Mr. HarriN. We have four agents. ,

Mr. GiLMAN. They are out there permanently?

Mr. HavpiN, Yes, sir.

Mr;) GIiLMmAN. Is that still a major point of distribution or transit
point?

Mr. HavrriN. It has not appeared to be. But it certainly, as you
are well aware, has all the reason to be, I think primarily be-
cause—you will have to recognize I think when you went out there,
we have not been in operation out there too long. It is a srall
island, as you are well aware, and our presence is well known out
there. It is not something we can hide, what our occupation is out
there. We have been very successful. As a result of that there
seems to be less availability of drugs. But I do feel, and I have
written a paper to headquarters, advising them I do not think we
should move people out of there, because I think once we did, we
would see it pop right back up.

Mr. GiLMAN. Do you have any other offshore jurisdiction?

Mr. Harrin. Honolulu, Hawalii.

Mr. GILMAN. Has that been a major problem?

Mr. HavpiN. Honolulu has been a problem in the fact that it is a
touchdown point primarily for almost all aircraft coming into the

- United States from Southeast Asia. There is, no doubt, that that is

the first point of Customs contact, of search. And there has been
seizures made out there of Southeast Asian heroin. There has even
been Southwest Asian heroin seized out there. We maintain an
office of approximately 11, 12 agents there that are busy. We work
a lot with the locals in Honolulu. I think our arrests were up last
year almost 300 percent.

Mr. GiLman. You mentioned in part of your testimony that there
is a growing incidence of brown heroin. How much of an increase
of Mexican brown heroin have you seen in the past year? Approxi-
mately what percentage of an increase?

Mr. HareiN. I do not know that. I think the thing that alarmed
me most of all—if we do have that again we could make that
available for you—was the purity for a good period of time follow-
ing the eradication program had stayed down quite low. Over the
last 2 or 8 months I have seen Sacramento reporting the purchase
of a quarter ounce of 7 6-percent purity last month, San Diego
reporting purchase of an ounce of 60-percent purity. These are
things we had not seen for some time. “

[The information referred to in the previous paragraph follows:]

The quality of street-level brown heroin has risen slightly from the 1 percent to 2 .,
percent range to the 2 percent to 3 percent range.

Mr. GiLmMaN. That is an indication of a great amount coming in?

Mr. Harpin. It is an indication to me that the purity is back up
in Mexico. They are crossing it at a higher level. In the past, I
think, with the eradication, the scarcity of opium base available for
conversion, enabled them to do a lot of the adulterating on the
other side of the border, and what we were seeing come across was
1, 2, 3, and 5 percent. Now that I am seeing the higher purity, it
gives me some grave concern in that area. : -

Mr. GiLmMAN. You have seized funds over the past year as part of
your narcotics effort. How much in dollars have you seized in this

- regional office?

80-475 O—Bl——h

e T e e T O P e



>/

- - helpful.

62

Mr. Havpin. Again, I would have to—— h

Mr. GrumaN. Approximately. . I just did not bring
My. Harein. I would rather give it to&}iyogliha% e off. Our asset

that with me. I would hate to guess it an
seizures this year are qul
as I recall over $3 million.
get you the exact figures.

: . th
up. We recently seized just last mon
tel x%ould rather have the opportunity to

with you: issio 1d like to
Mr. Chairman, with your permission I wouls :
asyihgg;i\%ﬁNHﬁpin have an opportunity to ‘s%bmxt that informa
tion and be made part of the re.cord at ‘tl}lstpom .
Mr. Zerererii. Absolutely, without objection.
[The information follows:]

California asset seizure data: T Rerion 12.330,847.
is — les D/0-5,287,061; Western Leg [
g‘iiﬁ?& y§§;1°1%%%1 Iﬁﬁﬁgﬁ March 1981)—51‘05 Angeles D/ 0-1,500,000;, Western

Region 10,43(),5%.

. GILMAN. ‘
vitl)\{gtors has the agency been able to prosec

s ‘ . N

thg/ilx)‘aﬁfgfgfzgain,l would rat}%er sub%nﬁ th?lt ’a)l a;};:m% }:;élaéxegggi
et f head with if. I can tell yo v Y

gifgiz};e 1;?{:) S?ea;? Bg’or the fiscal year, led the other four regions in

the arrest of class I's and II's. ‘
[The information requested follows.]

‘ :on. How many upper echelon
Just one other question H e it over

Class I and 11 arrests for California: | oy
CLASS | AND 1l ARRESTS FOR CALENDAR VEAR 198.0“ QWWMWMWM«
[ U - TN tewl Gt
g T T T w190
Western regibhs. .. DT 72 42
Los Angeles D/0. U S ———
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Mr. Grman. Whep you say clas
about the major traf }ckfrs?

. . Haprpin. Yes, sir, 1 am. o )
Bﬁ%ﬁ gﬁMAN. Vou led the entire Nagion in that effort? ey, but
Mr. Harpin. 1 led the other four, regions, not. collectively,

independently. = - bmit that information to

in, if you would submit tha m
M s %ﬁita gt?xe add?tional information, Mr. Chairman,

su rman,
g:i{w?}?;t yg);; made part of the record. Thank you, Mr. Halpin.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman. .
Mr. Zerererri. Thank you,

s U's and Il's, you are talking

Mr. Halpin, you have been most

Our next witness is Deputy Commissioner George Corcoran and

1 issioner Bergesen. . . .
Re&%réallﬁﬁgg‘lugsy gentlemen. Thank you for waiting patiently in

the back of the room. .
Vou can proceed as you see fit.
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TESTIMONY OF ALBERT G. BERGESEN, REGIONAL COMMIE-
SIONER, LOS ANGELES, CALIF., US. CUSTOMS SERVICE, AC.
COMPANIED BY MARVIN MILNER, REGIONAL DIRECTOR OF
PATROL

Mr. BErgeseN. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Mr. George Corcoran,
the Assistant Commissioner for Border Operations from Customs
Headquarters, Washington, D.C., injured his back yesterday, and
could not make this hearing. I have been designated to be his
spokesman.

My. ZerErETTI. Would you identify yourself.

Mr. Bercrsen. Albert G. Bergesen, Regional Commissioner of
Customs in Los. Angeles. This is Mr. Marvin Milner, the regional
director for patrol on my staff. He is with me because I have been
advised the committee wishes to ask him some specific questions. I
would like to begin by reading a statement at the request of
Customs Acting Commissioner, Washington, D.C.

Mr. Chairman, members of the committee, I appreciate the op-
portunity to present the viewpoint of the U.S. Customs Service in
this discussion on drug trafficking in this country.

Customs responsibility under the law extends to nearly 100,000
miles of border and more than 300 ports cf entry, so our strategy
and tacties must teke into consideration both the general problem
and its most speeific details. ;

Generally speaking, almost all narcotics and drugs are produced
outside the United States and must be imported covertly as contra-
band in a variety of ways and a variety of places.

Drugs come secreted in shipments of commercial cargo, hidden
on commercial ships and planes, carried by airline personnel, ships’
crews, and hired couriers, in “mother ships” that off-load in inter-
national waters to coastal runners, in extremely sophisticated pri-
vate aircraft, in baggage, taped to the torsos of tourists, and almost
any other method you can conceive of.

Customs devotes fully one third of its entire resources in re-

sponse to this onslaught. That includes 4,500 inspectors, 1,200
patrol officers, 600 special agents, nearly 100 drug detector dogs,
aircraft, boats, computers, and an impressive array of technology.
Individually and collectively, they are brought to bear on the many
aspects of the situation. . :
- We also work in very close cooperation with the Drug Enforce-
ment Administration, the Coast Guard, the Federal Aviation Ad-
ministration, State and local authorities, and a half dozen other
enforcement organizations in maintaining a defensive perimeter
around this country. :

Last year, we managed to seize about $3% billion worth of drugs

~.and narcobics. We have already matched that total this year. Still,

it isn’t nearly enough, witness the fact that the problem continues
to increase. ”

It isn’t only a question of resources. It’s also a question of good
intelligence, proper planning, and effective management. And at a
time of national economic retrenchment, it is more important and
necessary than ever that we manage and deploy our resources
efficiently.

It is also necessary to remember that the drug threat is shifting
and dynamic. And so must be our efforts to cope with it. If we have
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‘ i it i i 11 we must be
thing, it is that to be effective at all )

;%a;&?a%l;ngongagntly moving our resources to where the threat is

the greatest. i i ine, for example. And the

i cisely how we deal with cocaine, for e ple.

spgcl:r;?iz lfagii%s arza composed of almost equal elements of all that I
have menticned. . born California any

ine is a particular problem in Southern ,_an
solIlfl‘tic:r‘iaég e{t,l S"in ogr view, should go to the beginning of the:? chain
h S t brings it here. e
Ofgzggneﬂ;)aegirf; t%e journey to s},;)uthe;in{ (,ahfornlaalllr(li t(})lgl ﬁ;l}gli:s
Mountains of South America, where it is grown, mbia,
it i i d or flown north throug
where it is processed. It is then shipped o p morth through the
ibk to ¥lorida, the Gulf of Mexico, and tk
gg;;?:bg? 1%heoUni’ced States. In many instances it is then flown to
listri in southern California. . _ _
dls’fﬁé)x}étcigsci)%siderable cocaine coming d;rc(aictt;)ly ctg rg}lgzr.ggla abglia;g
from Colombia via Mexico and some carried by con jorclal airline
k d crew members but the vast majority
%gisig{)lg:;s rggte to Florida and the gulf. And that is where we are
i forces. - : o L
co%f%ﬁzaggl%iggrinothe airport, at the hall*lboic, th}(;; .llgeglensgscgl; é(s);
i int of contact for persons, vehicles, baggage, 0
gﬁie?ifé t%cgléountry. ‘And the Customs 1nsp§ctor’}s a capablﬁ3 sefntln
nel. A good many of our seizures are made “cold” as a result of a
insy ’ ertise and sixth sense. , .

) m?ﬁ:gé%l’ésr:xaﬁso niave allies. There are nearly 100 Cu_stonlls ..ca?llig}ela
enforcement teams, officer- and specially trained anima si WS ch
are able to detect narcotics in the most difficult hiding place

time. . )
mlle?dli\sri fllgve formed so-called special enf(}rcemeglt1 tt:g;nnsl,s cgfd
i ctors, patrol ofﬁcers,,cal'lme. enforcemen &
ggggi%ﬂog;g:%s, to cogcentrate on cocaine in cemmercial cargo and
irli age. o )
al%ﬁi: ?ggn%rs, using intelligence profiles and sh1pp1ng.docu1.nentasl
tion as a data base, have made some of our biggest cocaine se;ggﬁe .
We have devised an air operation in Miami completg with ﬁ
radar network, communications and comrgqn% S}ézt;etms, n?ggg?gfcz;?r-
equipped planes to detect, pursue, and inter ,
lcyx:a?"g u113p3,? ?:hepsame token, this approach has netted some sgﬁciis
We have done the same thing on the sea in concert wi e
d. . . » P
ngicdggatli'xe knowledge that money is the mainspring of tl#e“ whole
srﬁﬁggling‘ operation, we have launched one of our major offensives
against the financial base of-the drug trafficking. ed to Cus.
Drug money is illegal revenue and it is rarely reported to s
toms and the Internal Revenue Service by people ca;rgillng s
illicit currency or negotiable instm%n.lents mfft;;% a(g' 8%180% b g icsonot
If, in each instance, the amount is more-t}k ) nd is 1
i?}r).oi%eﬁn ?;ﬁen ‘there is a violation of the Currrenc_y“ and g?reggn
Transactions Reporting Act, sometimes also known as the ] s‘l)relfgn
Bank Secrecy Act. And the Lustoms Service is responsib e for
€ in that ‘laW- ///// . ~ . - . s
enIfgr%ﬁgida, we have estdblished Operation Greenback, which is

conducted by a Treasury Department Task Force made: up &f Cus- -
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toms and IRS special agents, other Tieasury officers, and DEA
- agents. o 7.

Under the direction of the U.S. Attorney’s Office, the Task Force
is aimed at multibillion dollar illicit financial transactions in Flor-
ida to -identify and prosecute major violators of the currency law.

To date, 31 major targets, including banks and other businesses
and potentially more than 100 defendants, have been identified for

their part in the handling and laundering of illegall&tljansported

drug money Whi“ch_ has been flowing through at least five banks. |

have been made; about $10 million worth of cocaine and $4 million
in currency have been seized; and one criminal ‘organization has
been tied to more tlan $500 million in such funds.

For the first time, Federal agents conducted raid and search
operations on banking institutions in south Florida. Several banks
employees are unindicted coconspirators.

All of this effort is predicated on the theory that the best place
to meet the cocaine threat is where it is the greatest. And cocaine
stopped in Florida never gets to California. \

But what of the urifortunately large amount that reaches south-
ern California anyway?

Customs posture in California is very much as it is in Florida,
but thinner because the direct threat is thinner.

There are special enforcement teams, dog teams, air units, and a
major currency operation. Last year, we seized 322 pounds of co-
caine in the Los Angeles region, worth about $70 million on the
street. So far this year, it is 75 pounds. 4

In Los Angeles,” we have established a task force at‘ the airport

designed to identify individuals and organizations involved in cur-

Chicago of the 1920’s and 1930’s. Our intelligence indicates large
numbers of Colombians are moving into the Los Angeles area and

- 1ow represent the second largest colony sutside Miami. |

We have fairly good indications that the cocaine threa“}, has
Jghifted, the pattern has changed and is now centered in the Carib-
~¥ean.
- That is the end of the statement. I would be glad to answer any
questions.
My. ZerERETTIL Thank you, Mr. Bergesen.
Mzr. Milner, would you like to make g statement? .
‘Mr. BERGESEN. No, he will not make a statement.
Mr. ZeFERETTI, MF, Bergesen, you mention in your statement the

. overseeing of the cargo yessels that come into the harbor, and the
: investigations_. There is g/ law on the books that presents—it doesn’t
prevent; but it gives t}/e right to the master of the vessel not to -

report to Customs until 24 hours after docking. Would you like to
comment on that? It seems to me that would lend itself to pretty -

much cleaning out a i kind of interception of narcotics, if in fact
__there were some ther/.

Mr. BERGESEN. Y;)s.‘ I would fully agree with ‘your statement.

Unfortunately, it /m very, very true. The regulation is. that the
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aster can report within 24 hours of the time that the vessel
ggmes to rest, vghich means comes to dock. Such notification can'be
made by telephone. Certainly within 24 or 6, 10- or 12-hour period
they can certainly get rid of the load, not only sweep but vacuum .
and then ask for clearance, and the chance of finding anything
would be negligible if not impossible. So this is a fact.} o

“What we are going to do about it I suppose would _’bge the next
question. I don’t know. It is a very difficult task, particularly in
southern California. We are talkingyabout approximately 300,000
yachts and boats in the southern Cal%ornia area alone. It would be
most difficult for'us te control that many boats and yachts and
segregate those which might come in from foreign ports, not re-
porting or carrying contraband. It would be a very dlfﬁculj; task
indeed. What we are trying to do is to concentrate op getting as
much information that we can from the local authomt_les,_as mach
intelligence as we can get from DEA, or other erganizations, and
then work on that on a selective threat basis, The volume of boats
is so great that the cost of checking them\\al}_,wmuld_ be unmanagea-
ble and too costly. We must continue on relying on information and
intelligence and be selective. We are now studying this problem
with a view toward better control. _ o ‘

Mr. ZerErETTI. Well, if vou can transfer along that mtelh.gence
information to us, maybe there is a way of changing that kind of

jurisdictional hazard that you have.™ R

Mr. BergrseN. Be happy to do that. o
Mr. ZerErETTI. Beyond that, what kind of losses in personnel and

in equipment are you anticipating within the next fewiﬁx}\opths?
Mr. BerceseN. Well, we are not exempt from the economic re-

trenchment, of course, which is a necessity in these times. In this

region we will be losing approximately T8 personnel between now

and middle September, 1981. The reduced personnel would be’ii:.

several occupational groups. 1 | ‘
Mr. Zs¥ERETTL. Seventy-eight personnel? !

Mr. Bercesen. Yes, T8 personnel,__put“of a total of about 1,409 on

board. o o |
- Myr. ZerergrTi. Is that 78 along/ with attrition type of ‘\k)sses that
-you have? So it would reduce your fyrce even greater? o

Mr. BerceseN. No. It would include the attrition. Certainiy it

would be hurtful, as would be a loss of equipment.

% .
Mr. ZerererTi. Along with personnel, there is a loss of air equip--

ment? - B -
Mr. BercesEN. Yes. There will be a loss of -aircraft. At the
moment we have in this region two air bases—one in Tucson, Ariz.

~and one in San Diego, Calif., both strategically located to cover

. .maximally the border between the United States and Mexico. At

the moment we have 19 aircraft. We will be reduced to 12 ,aircraft,
6 in each location. Our total reduction would be seven aircraft.
Mr. ZerereTTL. And you are going to be losing some beyond that
to the Miami region, too, aren’t you?. : . o
Mr. Bercesen. No. We will keep the 12. Of the seven, we are
losing, some might be going to Miami. And you must keep in mind,
some of our aircraft are rather old and could well be surplused.
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Mr. ZerereTTI. S0 you are talking about the loss of more than 50
percent of your strength, really, as far as your air surveillance is
concerned? ‘ L o N <

Mr. BErGESEN. No, actually, on a percentage basis, we are losing
about 29 percent of personnel, and about 37 percent of aircraft.

Mr. ZereERETTL So at a time when we see an increase in traffick-
ing, we find ourselves with the loss of“the kind of manpower and
equipment to fight that very same problem? :

Mr. BerGeseN. That is correct. '

Mr, ZerErETTI. Let me $outh on one other thing.

As Mr. Halpin indicated, do you meet with the other agencies
and create some kind of cooperative effort in this whole effort?

Mr. BerceseEN. Yes. I agree with George Halpin. We work very
closely together. We have a number of task forces with which
Customs works, very closely. In Imperial County. San Diego, we
work very closely with the Bureau of Narcotics at the State level.
We meet on a regular basis with DEA, and the Coast Guard, and
jointly plan operations. In fact; I have a full-time person stationed
with the Coast Guard, in their intelligence center. Further, we
have installed a Telex machine, communication system, right in
with the Coast Guard, : :

They have the same availability of intelligence information that
we have. And we work very closely together—I don’t think there is
a place in the United States or any city that has any finer coopera-
tion than we have with local, State, and Federal law enforcement
officials. We do an outstanding job in this essential area.

" Mr. ZererETT1. The Attorney General's statement sort of created

up

there, on page 5, and I quote, “Hight cases are in the indictment
stage. More than 15 arrests have been made. About $10 million
worth of cocaine and $4 million in currency have been seized. And
one criminal organization has been tied to more than $500 million
in such funds.” What are we referring to? What kind of criminal
organization?

Mr. Bercesen. I will have to say I don’t know, but I will find out.
It is out of my area. I will definitely find out for you and advise
your office. :

Myr. ZerererTi. Mr: Railsback.
Mr. RaiLsBAck. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. ‘
I wonder if you could estimate what percentage. of all of the

contraband coming in is seized? There have been various estimates,
I am just curious what you think may be getting through. Do you

have any estimate?
Mr. BERGESEN. I would hesitate to even make a judgment on
that. I don’t

think 1 could even come close. Oftentimes we estimate

this on the basis of the price of narcotics as it goes up on the street,

as probably one of the best indications of how much we. are seizing
contraband coming in; 10 percent, 8 percent—I would not wish to
say as it would be quite inaccurate. . ~ :

Mr. Ramssack. To give you an example, I recall that we had
hearings in New Orleans, ‘which, as you know, also has a very
serious problem. And I think the)feeling there was that there was

a little bit of confusion. We are just trying to clear that end of it

If 1 might, in Mr. Corcoran’s statement, he has a paragraf)’h'
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more contraband entering than was ever being apprehg;nded.
iméfl};ss what you are saying is that that is probably true; here.

Mr. BERGESEN. I am saying that is true 1n spades. o

Mr. RAILSBACK. Then let me ask you the same question Fhat I
asked the precedix;(g witness.

r. BERGESEN. Yes, Sir. ' |

%r; RAILSBACK. If you could waive a magic wand, and ]“,Lf you
could really have what you felt you needed to successfully combat
what is apparently a pervasive problem, what would you want 5,9
have? And then I want you, if you calrflé to characterize the condi-

i our equipment and your aircratt. ' . _
tlol\%l(‘).ngRGES(llEN.p Well, the f}i,rst thing I would like to say is I think
it goes without saying that the place to attack the narcotics _prob-
lem is at the source of the narcotic itself. Of course, that is primar-
ily international. And &3 for this country, primarily the northern
California and Honolulu areas, the sinsemilla situation.

Mr. RamsBack. I understand that. _

Mr. BerceseN. You are talking about suppose we are working or}?
narcotics, what would I want to have the way of resources:

Mr. RAILSBACK. Yes. 7 .

Mr. BERGESEN. Well—resources, people, radar equipment, planes,
vehicles, money, and so forth, all are needed. .

Mr. RarisBack. What equipment do you need, what aircraft and
Solvf?:f%ERGESEN. Well, there are some nice aircraft I would like to
get ahold of, like the S-3A from the Navy Department, which has
everything that we in the Customs Service need for our purposes in
combating air smuggling our law enforcement communications
equipment is in dire need of upgrade, and of course replacement
vehicles are always needed as our constant use wears cars out very
quickly. Manpower is always a problem in an enforcement agency
and uitimately more stringent reporting requirements, such as no
24-hour grace period prior to reporting to Customs would be benefi-
- cial to our needs. '

Mr. RaLspack. That is very helpful to us. We are not experts on
the various types of aircraft.

Mr. BERGE}S’EN. Certainly more lookdown radar would be helpful
for us, rather than using some of the old radar systems we now
have. . v
Mr. GiLman. Would the gentleman yield?

r. RAaiLsBack. Yes. R

ﬁr. GrmaN. You seize a number of aircraft throughout the year.

Mir. BERGESEN. Yes, we do. .

Mr. GiLMaN. A goodly number of them are in storage. Do you
make use of any of the seized aircraft? )

Mr. BercESEN. Yes, we certainly do. The fact of the matter 1s
every time we seize an aircraft we inspect it carefully to ascertain
if it can be utilized in our fleet. In the last 6 months we seized four
aircraft coming in from Mexico to this area and we will certainly
look them over carefully for Customs usage. The finest pilots 1
think in the United States, equal to the Air Force, most of them
from the Air Force or from the Navy, or Marines, ‘carefully look
over the aircraft with the expert opinion of our maintenance per-
sonnel. One of the favorite planes that a smuggler uses is the 210,
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206, 310 Cessnas. And if they are suitable, and in good shape, we
certainly like to do our very best to keep those aircraft. We have a
number of aircraft in our fleet that are seized by us. .

Mr. RaiLsBack. Would you then continue down your litany, or
your list of other things you need.

Mr. BERGESEN. Yes. We need investigative authority returned to
us to follow up on narcbotics seized on the border, airport, or seaport
by our investigative forces. We are doing quite well. We certainly
need more sophisticated aircraft. We need some more jets to re-
spond to the smuggling aircraft. You know, you get a blip on the
radar, and you have to have fast aircraft to respond to the threat.
We certainly need that. We certainly could use more manpower
and equipment as Mr. Halpin of DEA said.

However, I do want to say that we are doing the very best we
can with what we have.

Mr. RamwsBack. What is the condition of your aircraft?

Mr. BERGESEN. If the reduction occurs I will have nine fixed wing
aircraft and three rotorcraft remaining. Only one of the remaining
aircraft will be a sensored interceptor. The average age of the
remaining rotorcraft (helicopter) is 20 years, with the oldest being
1962 and the newest being 1972, The average age of the fixed wing
aircraft is 10 years, with the oldest being 1962 and the newest
being 1979. Due to age and utilization, the average down time for
both categories of aircraft is 25 percent. This figure will increase to
approximately 35 percent and possibly as high as 45 percent as the
remaining aircraft are used in an attempt to maintain present
levels of productivity.

Mr. RamsBack. Do you have firsthand knowledge of intelligence
that leads you to believe that the traffickers have much more
iopgisticated or better equipment than what the U.S. Government

as?

Mr. BERGESEN. I would say without question that they are ahead
of us in this area. ’ ’

Mr. RamsBack. How do you know that?

Mr. BeErgESEr. Well, last year we seized about 191 aircraft, a lot
of them sophisticated aircraft. The aircraft, the DC-6, DC-7, used
for bulk marihuana, a tonnage basis, good aircraft, 270, 300 knots.

Mr. RamusBack. I have one last question.

What about personnel? Do you think you are adequately staffed
or, is there a shortage? '

Mr. BerGgrseEN. No, I do not. I do not think we are adequately
staffed, particularly in the enforcement arena. We certainly need
more personnel. We hope that maybe in the near term, that situa-
tion will change and we will get more funds and more people and
other resources. We need them desperately to keep up and hopeful-
ly ahead of the smuggling operations.

Mr. RamsBack. Where do you think based on your experience
most of the entries are made? v

Mr. BergeseN. Of narcotics? Most of the entries that are coming
in are hard narcotics, would be at the Los Angeles Airport. In the
past year, 1980, we seized about 448 pounds of cocaine, which is
considerable. You figure the cost around $250,000 for a pound, you
are talking about millions of dollars. On the border it would be
mostly marihuana, and occasionally heroin. We do not get too
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much heroin at the airport. We had a 2-pound seizure there 2 or 3
weeks ago. Normally it is cocaine seizures that we see at the
airport; in considerable volume. _

Mr. RamsBack. Thank you very much.

Mr. ZerergTTi. Mr. Dornan. ‘ o

Mr. Dornan. Mr. Bergesen, could you go back over the six air-
planes? You mentioned the one Cessna Citation you have. It appar-
ently has a radar unit adapted to it that was the runner-up in an
Air Force competition in my district, near the airport there.

Mr. BerceseN. That is right. L 5
Mr. Dornan. Is that your only advanced aircraft with any type

dern radar system? ,
Ofﬁg gERGESEN. gVe have a Citatibn 2, that is advanced more than
the Citation 1 and of course the S-2D and the Mohawk.

Mr. DornaN. Would that be in North Island, San Diego?
Mr. BErgeseN. The Citation II is in Miami, Fla.

Mr. Dornan. Whatever happened to Robert’\Vesé'o’s confiscated
: i

rjet? A \ '
Le&g. BerGeseN. We had that for a while here in San Diego. The
cost of operation, as I am sure you know being a pilot—was prohib-
itive. The specifics of the air-frame would not permit us to put in a
FLIR or put in a radar operation in that aircraft. So’, we unloaded
it. : } o
Mr. DornaN. You said a FLIR, forward looking infrared radar,
where you see planes at night? L o

Mr. BergeseN. That is correct. It is like a television screen,
where you see the complete outline of the aircraft in front of you.
These planes often run without lights, which is an illegal naviga-
tional hazard. | o

Mr. DorNaAN. Which, by the way, creates a tremendous flying
safety hazard for airliners?

Mr. BErGESEN. Tremendous. : o .

Mr. Dorvan. With 6,000 or 7,000 aircraft coming into this coun-
try illegally, without proper airflight plans, sooner or later we will
have a midair coli‘ision. o 'b'l't ' .

- Mr. BERGESEN. A very serious possibility.

Mr. DorwaN. The S—3yis built right here in Burbank at Lockheed.

That is the Viking. ‘ . .
- Mr. BERGESEN. Yes, and cost $14 million per aircraft.

Mr. Dorwan. But your best helicopter would probably be a Bell
Jet Ranger? , ‘

Mr. BErRGESEN, I would think so.

Mr. DorNaN, Or Hughes 5007 _

Myr. BErgEsEN. Hughes has an excellent helicopter. i

Mr. Dornan. Wouldn’t a mix of the S-3’s, and not the expensive
Learjet, but the bottom line of private executive jets, the Cessna
Citation, be ideal? ‘ _

Mr. BERGESEN. Yes. - ’

Mr. RaisBack. Would the gentleman yield? Aren’'t there any
helicopters manufactured in Illinois? [Laughter.] ‘

Mr. BERGESEN. I am meeting next week with Hughes Helicopter.

Mr. DornaN, On the 5007 ] ‘o
Mr. BeErGeseEN. On the helicopters, yes. They are going to make
presentation on their Helos.
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Mr. DorNAN. Probably with the 500.

Mr. BERGESEN. Probably. ' ~
~ Mr. Dornan. I think most Americans must be unaware of the
esprit de corps 6f your pilots. I only learned in my first term in
Congress that they actually wear gold wings with the 1.S. Treas-
ury Department seal in the center.

Mr. BErGESEN. That is right. ‘

Mr. DorNAN. And these Customs pilots feel, although they are
desperately undermanned, th?.t they are really performing a serv-
1ce. o :

Mr. BERGESEN. Absolutely. : :

Mr. DornaN. May I come from the wild blue yonder, stopping
these drugs coming into our country, down to the Customs officer
right there, who is the first person that foreigners come in contact
with. He is the first persor that an American sees coming back
into the country, as I did the night before last from El Salvador.
They have to be public relations people. '

Mr. BERGESEN. They are well trained in courtesy and inspec-
tional techniques.

Mr. DorNAN. They are next to the seal of our country, the
American flag. They want to be polite. ‘

Mr. BergeseN. That is right, and they are.

Mr. DorNaN. I understand there is a red-green system that is
going to be introduced. Would you explain that.

Mr. BerceseN. The red/green system is a procedure utilized in
several European countries in which citizens with no merchandise
to declare for importation may bypass any sort of Customs exami-
nation upon entering the country. While it is considered successful
in Europe, it is not feasible for the United States in that we are the
marketplace of the world for drugs. :

Even though Customs has the right to “spot check” those arriv-
ing citizens who utilize the “green” line, enforcement would be
reduced proportionately in the limited number of examinations
which could be accomplished under such a system. To the best of
our knowledge, no nation with a smuggling problem utilizes a red/
green system. o

Customs does not feel the need to institute such a system except
for the pressures placed on us by congressional groups, who in turn
appear to be under pressure from the public sector to expedite the
flow of passengers and cargo into the United States,

The Customs Service is testing several types of inspections sys-
tems which should expedite the flow of commerce, yet leave us
with a fairly adequate enforcement posture. "

When you come in, let’s say at Heathrow, London, you first go
through immigration. They stamp your arrival, Then you walk out.
You pick up your bags and you walk through. If you have nothing

- to declare, you go through the green dual alleyway. If you have

something to declare, you go through the red. Now, that is totally
unacceptable to us in the Customs Service, for several reasons. And
I would like to explain, if I may. : '

nia. ; : N
Mr. Dornan. A Newcastle breakout? What is that?

Right today, we have a Newcastle breakout in southern Califor--
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Mr. BErRGESEN. That is a disease brought in by parrots, para-
keets, birds, fowl, which if it affects the poultry of this country it
could be very devastating indeed. In fact, in 1971, right in the
southern California Riverside area, we had a very, very serious
outbreak of Newcastle disease, which cost $50 million, and it killed
hundreds of thousands of chickens.

Mr. DorNAN. It would be equivalent to hoof and mouth disease
for livestock?

Mr. BERGESEN. Somewhat, it would be devastating. You mention
hoof and mouth disease. This is one of several reasons why we are
against the red and green system, because we would not even have
an opportunity to look at the travelers handbags. The handbag is a
favorite place to bring in fruit, and other small articles, even
narcotics. If we don’t look at the handbag, it would not only cause
an increase with our narcotic problems but could account for the
introduetion of disease. :

Mr. DorNaN. Mr. Bergesen, this is such an asinine, harebrain
suggestion, I want you to tell us where it came from. Someone who
is going to try to cheat is a liar to begin with, particularly if he is a
drug smuggler. If he finds out that if he declares zero he can just
walk through a green line, what you are going to have in the red
line are a lot of neirvous Americans trying to make a bargain on a
camera from Japan, or some clothing from somewhere. They are
trying to, like real estate appraisers, come in with a low bargain.
What are you entitled to bring in duty-free now?

Mr. BERGESEN. $300.

Mr. DorNAN. So maybe they have $400 worth of goods. And they |

have made a fair appraisal of $299, and they are standing in line,
sweating it out, feeling like criminals, expecting to go to Leaven-
worth. And here are drug smugglers putting down zero, and going
unimpeded through a green line. Where did this asinine idea come
from? )

Mr. BERGESEN. It was established in Europe.

Mr. DorNAN. Well, does it have its proponents in this Govern-

ment?

Mr. BERGESEN. Yes; we have proponents in this Government for
a red/green system. We have a number of organizations, particu-
larly tourist and airline associations, groups who want to maxi-
mize, expedite the passengers coming back without considering the
dangers involved. Certainly as you suggest, if I am going to be a
smuggler, I am going to be delighted to go through the green lane.
My odds are fantastically good I will not be caught, even with a
spot check.

Mr. DorNAN. I don’t want to infringe on the time of my col-
leagues. Could you briefly explain the new collapsing region
system, where we are going to be combined with Houston, Tex.? Is
that what I understand is going to happen—when we should be
concentrating more on precision in more efficient districts?

Mr. BERGESEN. As you know, the Congress, is proposing in an
appropriations bill that the Customs Service reduce from nine to
six regions by 1983. They did not designate what regions. I don’t
believe that the regions to be eliminated have been finally decided,
however, they have talked about Baltimore, New Orleans, and Los
Angeles. And certainly being in Los Angeles, I cannot accade to
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that. We are second to New York in almost every index you com-
pare with—number of entries, number of foreign passengers,
number of containers, duties collected, foreign air cargo, and so on.
The Customs Service has agreed to a reduction to six regions as
being more efficient, economical, and effective.

Mr. DorNAN. So these are not streamlining suggestions from
within the Customs department or Treasury, but from outside?

Mr. BERGESEN. From the Congress. Congress has a bill that we
should reduce from nine to six regions. And then also reduce
districts, and also reduce some ports of entry. But I believe that the
determination has not been finalized that it is going to be Los
Angeles, New Orleans, or Baltimore which will be eliminated.

Mr. DorNAN. I defer to Mr. Gilman.

Mr. GiLmaN. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Thank you for yielding,
Mr. Dornan.

Mr. Bergesen, your region now is limited to just the immediate-

area?

Mr. BERGESEN. No. We start at San Luis Obispo, which is about
midway up the State of California and from there south to the
Mexican border at San Ysidro-Tijuana. We cover Clark County,
Nev., which is really the Las Vegas area and the entire State of
Arizona.

Mr. GiLMAN. Do you have offshore responsibility?

Mr. BERGESEN. Yes, we do.

Mr. GiLMAN. To what areas?

Mr. BERGESEN. The entire Pacific Ocean coast from San Luis
Obispo to the Mexican border.

Mr. GiLmaN. Does it include the Marianas?

Mr. BErGESEN. No. That comes under the San Francisco region.
They also have Honolulu and Alaska.

Mr. GiLMAN. Your total personnel for your region is 1,400?

Mr. BErGESEN. 1,409. We will go down to about 1,383 when we
get through with the planned reductions.

Mr. GiLmaN. How many of those are administrative?

Mr. BerGESEN. Administrative? It depends—you are talking
about the regional office itself? .

Mr. GiuMaN. In the whole area. What do you call this region?

Mr. BergesEN. The Los Angeles region, Los Angeles, Calif.
Region No. 7. ‘ ‘ :

Mr. GiLmMAN. How many are administrative in region 7?

Mr. BergesEN. Well, I will have to qualify that. In the districts
we have an administrative officer, district directors, supervisors.

Mr. GiLmaN. How many? What percentage roughly?

Mr. BErRGESEN. I will take a rough guess. I will get that for you. I
would say in the area of 15, 20 percent.

Mr. GiLMAN. Are the remainder then out on the front line?

Mr. BERGESEN. On the front line, inspectors, patrol officers, and
import specialists. One that seems not to be mentioned too often is
our import specialists, our classification and value people, who are
really the ones that collect the money, well over $1 billion in this
region that we collect annually. They do a fine job.

Mr. Gmuman. Taking out the specialists and administrative
people, how many do you have left for front-line duty?
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Mr. BerGesEn. For enforcement purposes? We have about 265
patrol officers, 600 inspectors, 110 import specialists.

Mr. GrLman, 265.

Mr. BErGeSEN. Patrol officers, yes.

Mr. GiLmaN. You are talking about how large an area now? How
many ports and how many border areas? ‘

Mr. BErGESEN. About nine ports, the whole border of Arizona
and California with Mexico.

Mr. GiLMAN. How many airports? -

Mr. BerceseN. We really have the one big one at Los Angeles.

We have Lindberg, we have Calexico, we have Nogales, Tucson. We |

have LAX, Los Angeles, and Phoenix. And then we have Brown
Field. Those are the major ones. . P

Mr. GiLMAN. Seven airports, and nine ports. And how much
border area?

Mr. Bercesen. We have about 700 miles of border which is
impossible to completely patrol.

Mr. GiLman. That is spreading yourself very thin?

Mr, BERGESEN. Very thin indeed.

Mr. Giuman. You talked about 12 aircraft. Is that for region 7?

Mr. BErGESEN. Those will be our total aircraft.

Mr. GiLmMAN. Nationwide? Region 7?

Mr. BErRGESEN. Yes, sir, region 7. '

Mr. Giuman. How many are operational out of the 12 today?

Mr. BerGESeN. They are all operational. :

Mr. GiLman, That 1s unusual, isn’t it?

Mr. BErGESEN. Very unusual. We run about 25 percent downtime
in our aircraft. As they are geiting older and older, it may run up
to 35 or 40 percent downtime: :

Mr. GiLMAN. In the 12 aircraft—do you include the seized air-
craft as part of the 12? B

Mr. BirgeseN. Yes, sir. A ‘

Mr. GimaN. What percentage of tourists coming into the coun-
try do you find are carrying narcotics that you have found within,
say, the last year? What percentage? .

Mr. Bercrsen. Well, that is a hard question. I think we can
answer the question this way. When we have a reason to suspect a
tourist we send them to secondary—roughly we send about 20
percent to a secondary examination, of that amount approximately
o percent are found to be carrying contraband.

Mr. GiLmaN. Where you suspect they may be carrying some-
thing. Twenty percent of all people entering?

Mr. BERGESEN. Go to secondary. And then we have a further
examination, which we would call a search. This would be a pat-
down, body search or cavity search. That happens in a small per-
centage of cases. I would say maybe eight-tenths of 1 percent, of
those sent to’secondary. Not to exceed 1 percent. However, the
reaction is good. I would say that of the 20 percent we probably hit
about § percent of seizures as a result, :

Mr. DornaN, Would the gentleman yield? The gentleman from
New York will recall when we were struggling for the modest
funds that operate this committee, that the week before in New
York City a drug smuggler had balloons in his stomach with
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enough heroin in them, the illegal street value, of which could
subsidize this committee for 10 years. :

Mr. Giman. $800,000, as I recall, just in one stomach.

Mr. DornanN, How do you approach that point of examining
somebody that may have swallowed balloons filled with heroin or
cocaine that he will regurgitate, or has hidden in other body cav-
ities? , .

Mr. BErRGESEN. We have had on the border operation a number of
pedestrians or passengers coming in with swallowed balloons with
narcotics. We have had a few of them burst., We have saved a
number of lives by prompt medical action. The risk that they take
is sizable, as the stomach acid will burn through the rubber, and
then once that happens, unless you can get him immediately to a
doctor for a stomach pump, they are gone.

Mr. Dornan. It is a massive overdose.

Mr. BErGESEN. Yes it is, and death usually results..

Mr. GimaN. Roughly, how many tourists are you examining
each year in region 77 “ :

Mr. BEerGESEN. At the airport, LAX, we are running about

2,800,000. :

Mr. GiLMaN. Just in LAX? ,'

Mr. BergeseN. LAX alone. We are second to Kennedy Airport in
New York. Really—I say second. Miami is second considering the
citizens going back and forth to the islands. '

Mr. GiLmaN. How many personnel do you have, inspecting per-
sonnel at LAX? : ' .

Mr. BerGeSEN. We are running about 170 inspectors.

Mr. GiLMaN. And that is an around-the-clock operation?

Mr. BErGESEN. Yes, basically. However, there are certain hours
of the day when A/C arrivals taper off. Conversely, there are
preferred hours in which most airlines want Customs clearance.

Mr. Giuman. You are spread very thin over this whole region.

Mr. BErGESEN. That is correct. )

Mr. GiLmaN. Have you made recommendations for additional
personnel and additional equipment? ‘

Mr. BErGESEN. Many times. |

Mr. GiLMAN. And has your main office in Washington made
those recommendations to the appropriate committee?

Mr. BeErcrsEN. I am sure they have. It is in our budget request.

. The question you discussed previously with Mr. Halpin, do we get

involved in national planning—I must say that we get deeply in-
volved in national planning. - -

Mr. GimaN. When was the last time you were part of a national
planning effort?

Mr. BERGESEN, Last week.

Mr. GiLMaN. Who did you meet with?

Mr. BergeSEN. With the Acting Commissioner of Customs, all

the regional commissioners of Customs and the Assistant Commis
sioner in Washington, D.C. f‘

Mr. GiLman. That was a national strategy session? '

Mr. BergeseEN, Exactly.

M;'. GizmaN. Did you come up with a long-range’ recommenda-
tion? . :
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Mr. BERGESEN. Yes. That particular session was on our need to
reduce personnel to meet our budget cuts, on where we are going
to cut, to meet. an approximate 600 people reduction for the year
1981. We split up into task forces. It was a wonderful demonstra-
tion of good, seund, and constructive management. We all agreed
what we are going to do and where. The good thing was there was
no protecting each regional commissioner’s turf.

Mr. GiLMAN. Is this frequently done? o

Mr. BErGESEN. Frequently. We are called into Washington at
least quarterly. In fact, I have been back there twice in the last 6
weeks. - . '

Mr. GiLMaN. When is the last time you met with other agencies,
interagency planning?

Mr. BErGESEN. Last week.

Mr. GiLmaN. Where was that?

Mr. BERGESEN. In Los Angeles.

Mr. GiLmMaN. Was that part of a long-range planning effort?

Mr. BeErcEsEN. No, that was a part of meeting all the heads of
the law enforcement—LAPD, Customs, DFA, Coast Guard, et
cetera to discuss our common problems and need for coordination.

Mr. GiLMAN. Was the State attorney general included in that?

Mr. BERGESEN. I believe so.

Mr. GiLmaN. You haven’t heard this criticism from the attorney
general before today?

Mr. BErGESEN. I have not heard it before.

Mr. GiiMAN. I guess my time is running out. I thank you,

Mr. BErGESEN. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. ZererRETTI. Mr. DeNardis. .

Mr. DENARrpis. Mr. Chairman, I want to pose a_question or two
to Mr. Bergesen and then a question or two to Mr. Milner, if I may.

~First I want to say for the record, to Congressman Dornan and to
Congressman Railsback, with all due respect to them, even though
they are more senior members, this most junior member of the
committee wants to indicate that in his modest district in Connecti-
cut, the finest helicopter made in the world is made by Sikorsky
Aircraft.

Mr. DornAN. That is the spirit.

Mr. BErgeseN. We will make a note of that.

Mr. DENARDIs. I am learning. )

Apropos of the dialog that you had with Congressman Dornan,
about the red-green system, let me ask you, one, are you familiar
with Operation Intercept?

Mr. BERGESEN. Yes, I am. ‘

Mr. DENARrDIs. Would you tell us a little bit about it. Is it in your
opinion effective? And would it be possible and practical in your
opinion to institute a similar operation with some modification, of
course?

Mr. BERGESEN. I am very familiar with Operation Intercept. It
was a concentrated effort on the Mexican border to thoroughly
search every person, package, and conveyance entering the United
States.

Operation Intercept was an extremely effective enforcement
strategy. During a high point in narcotics smuggling activity this
operation had a dramatic deterrent affect on smuggling operations.

tiasins
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This is borne out by the fact that shortly after the operation began,
seizures fell off significantly and.narcotics availability at the street
level was at an alltime low. '

With the pressure to expedite Customs clearances, and dwindling
human resources, it would be impossible: for Customs to have an-
other Operation Intercept. However, for short periods of time based
upon available intelligence, we do have concentrated enforcement
efforts in this region and at various locations throughout the
United States.

I would say that while it proved a point, we would not plan a
similar operation at this time, or in the near future. We don’t
think we need to have that. We would rather go on the basis of
selected task forces, selected attacks on wherever the threat might
be. We would not have another intercept, to the best of my knowl-
edge. We don’t think it is valuablé in today’s environment.

Mr. DeENArpis. You don’t see the wisdom of doing it again in
modified, scaled-down version? ,,

Mr. BERGESEN. No. The other negative effect of the operation was
that while we closed the gap of the San Ysidro, Tijuana, port of
entry, we closed it totally, shut it. Certainly the smugglers, with all
of their great ingenuity, are going to find a way to come around

the port and come in and outside of the port or other areas, 3

miles, 6 miles, east or west. We found that cut. We would not have
another intercept. .

Mr. DENARDIS. I want to ask you a question in connection with
the testimony by Mr. Corcoran concerning the chain of events, that
is, the journey of cocaine to this country.

Mr. BERGESEN. Yes.

Mr. DENARD1s. Could you provide the members with a profile,
generalized profile on cocaine smugglers, and smuggling vessels,
nationalities, flags under which the vessels commonly sail, that
kind of thing, just te get a general idea?

Mr. BERGESEN. Profiles are an enforcement tool and to discuss
them in specifics in a hearing open to the public would compromise
our enforcement efforts of today, In general, the cocaine courier
frequenting this region falls into one of two basic categories. The
first is a white female, 21-26 years of age, unaccompanied, and
arriving directly or indirectly from a source country. The second is
a white male, 30-37 years of age, abroad for business purposes, and
arriving indirectly from a source country.

Smuggling vessels are of two basic types. Vessels utilized by the
local coastwise smuggler are in the 24-foot to 36-foot class—motor
or sail. Vessels utilized by large, well organized smugglers are

‘categorized as mother ships. These are general cargo vessels of 100

feet to 300 feet in length and are usually equipped with sophisticat-
ed electronics gear. Flags flown are: one, no flag displayed; two,
Panama; three, Colombia; four, Honduras; and five, Venezuela.

Within this region, the majority of cocaine seizures have been
made from the person and baggage of arriving passengers on com-
mercial air flights. The next area is air cargo, followed by vessel
cargo, motor vehicle and aircraft.

Yes, other narcotic seizures such as heroin, marihuana, amphet-
amines, and barbiturates cccur more frequently in the land border
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envzronment ‘and are predommately associated W1th pedestrians,

“.privdate motor vehicles, and prlvate aircraft. S N

Mr: DENARrbIs. How about by sea?

- Mr. BerceseN, By sea mostly through ¢ eaﬂg ¥h1p But mast of 8

it comes by passenger, carried or through smt/ases That- 15 the
main way-it comes in. s

Mr. DENArpis. What you have been describing here foclay,“an&l .

the testimony which has preceded, "at leust-with respect to'co-

caine—this is what I am getting at, what I-am hearing—is that the.
biggest obstacle to the increased use of cocaine is not the threat of -
prosecution, unfortupately, ‘but price and availability, and that to-
meet the growing demand and to take advartage of obvmus‘y, .
rising profits we have new smuggling, new refining, new distiibu- - 7
tion networks that are being formed, tl?at are soundmg to m;N’z be L

very sophisticated.
Mr. BERGESEN. Wlthouﬁ exceptmn No questlon about that. Very

sophisticated.

Mr. DeNARrDiS. Let me just svvxtch and conclude my quesﬁmmng,
by taking advantage of Mr. Milnez*s presence, who is the chief of

patrol for this region.

Could you talk a little bﬁ; about what a- controlled dellvery is?

Could you then also talk about. your activities at Los Angeles

International Airport, in terms of the Customs patro] offices” that’,

are authorized, the number—your actual strength at this time, the
areas of respon51bilny-—~thelr areas of respon81blllty, duty toux:*y“"he
kinds of things that would be useful for us to know in terms-of the

workaday operations, in light of Mr. Bergesen'’s comments about”
~ the huge influx daily into the airport.

Mr. Minner. A controlled delivery is babacally the supervised

uranSportanon ‘of contraband, normally narcotics, aft@l\ the seizure

is made, the purpose being to gei' to the ultimate coqelgnee or

somaone higher than a courier, if there is a profegsional courier
_carrying the drugs. It is-also utilized because after the initial
seizure Customs can then geographically -move their warrantless -
- search authorrty along with the contraband, and utilize it\at thé.

next point of interdiction or contact with a suspect. This is carried

out in conjunction also with DEA, due to their role in'the drug

enforcement area: The controlled dehverv is one of the responsibil-
Customs patrol officers in this region. « - .

o

. Mr. DeNarpis, Is the operation adequate?

"~ Mr. MiLNER. It depends. It would depend mainly on the wmplex~ |

ﬁ-y of a controlled delivery, because the more: ‘complex, the-more

personnel it would eat up.- The best way to say if it is adequate
would be to say right now we have 12 patvol officers asmgned 1o .

the Lus Angeles International Airpert..
Mr. DENazrs. Your actudl strength at this tm)e is, 12?
- Mr. MiLNER. Yes.

. Mr. DeNazrpis. And (tha*’c represemts whai; portion of authomzed,
positions?

Mr. MILNER. We have 265 sworn ofﬁcers Wil;lun the patrsl divi-
sion of thig regnﬁ 5o 12 woulé be whauever percentage Lhat Tepre-
Senm e o 5" o l .
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Mr. DENARDIS. Are you up to fu.l] staff complement in terms of

* CPO's? You say there are 12, Are yon authcmzed more? You have

- 12onboard. .

Mr. Miunzgr. The official eetab Nhed cm.luxg is 16.

- Mr. DeNaRpis. Spriteen is the cefling. So you are down 4.

Mr. MiLNER. We are dewn 4 from the established ceiling at that
port. &
Mr. DeENARDIS. Cons:.dermé,\ lmn\/ ime lost by wvacations, sick
leave, that kind- of thing. in. a&dltmn to lost hours for men who
may "have to go. to court to ﬁesmfy, What is your daily actual
Strength per tour of duty? - -. | 2

- Mir. MiLngR. Three men, -

Mr. DENARDIS. Three men‘? @

Mr. MILNER. “Yes, sir. '

Mr. DENARDIs. It seems to me to be woefully inadequate.

Mz Minngr. I think those men would agree with you.

f

Mr. DeNarpis. Have .you made specific recommendations about

what staff levels would be necessary?

Mr. MunEr. Yes, sir. And-in keeping with that, I am recons
mending, as staff ofﬁcer, to Mr. Bergesen, certain’ redeployment of
personnel to accommedate an increase in the Los Angeles area—
with this ongomg need tol deploy our forces to the greatest area of
productivity.

Mr. DENaARrbpIs. How has your suggestlon about redeployment
been received? . .

Mr. MiLNgR, Very lavo?‘ley

My, DENARDIS Mr. Chaj /man I have no further questions at this

“time. .

Mr. ZEFERETTI. Thank you.
Mr. BERg‘ESE\I Mz. DeNardis, may I make a further comment on

" . this statentent?

Mr. DENAgDIs. Surely.
 Mr. Bercesen. We are going to be reduced about 80 patrol offi-
cers in this region. The only way that we are going to beaf up, and

it shoulcl be beefed up at the LuZ Angeles Airport, with patrol

- officers, is to reassign personnel. We are attempting to do just that.

So what we are going to have to do is to do the best that we can to

.. be flexible, to reassign our people wherever the threat is the great-
~ est, and certainly it is at the airport in Los Angeles.

Mr. ZerererTi. If you would even if you reassxgned them, how

‘much is it going to incredse your coverage? You are talking about
three men. At best; if you reassign“them,

with the losses you are
going to incur, you are etlll going to have three men patrellmg that
particular area.

Mr. Bergesen. No. What I am saying is we are going to have {o
reassign from other aress, other districts to Los Angeles, such as
Nogales. We would reassign sorhe Customs patrol officers from

- there into the Los Angeles Airport. It is going to hurt the losing
. district. We are going to-put them where the grmtest threat is,

which is Los Angeles at the present time.”
Mr, ZerereTTI. Do you have a formal academy for these Custems
people, and how much training is there involved?
Gl\/' r. BERGESEN. Yes. We have a verv very. fine schoql in Glynco,
e a
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« Mr. ZEFERETTI Is there anybody in the academy at the present
t1me‘? )

Mr. BERGESEN Yes We have inspectors there almost.continuous-
ly. We have a group of inspectors there right now training. We
have an excellent training academy. And CPO’s as well go back to

_the acadeniy.

Mr. GiLmAN. Mr. Chalrman, if I might, one more question.

- Mr. Bergesen how do you control your small marine craft that
come in?

Mr. Bercesen. That is a very difficult problem. As we said
previously, we were talking about 300,000 small craft in this area.
We are talking about many, many marinas.

Mr. GiLmaN. That is done through a voluntary system, isn’t it? If
I have a craft, I am supposed to report to you when I arrive in
port?

Mr. BERGESEN. That is exactly right. -

Mr. GiLMmAN. If they don’t report, that is it?

Mr. BeErGeseN. That is it. They are supposed to know the law—
24-hour reporting. If they don’t, we have no way that 1 can con-
ceive of, other than through information and intelligence to ascer-
tain if they have not reported.

Mr. GiLMAN. Do you have any recommeridation for tightening
that process up?

Mr. BerceseNn. Well, I thought I had a recommendation. And I
researched it, and foand out that it wasn’t such a great recommen-
dation. I was thinking of designating ports of entry ‘wherein private
boats and yachts would have to go into as the first port of entry.

. And I understand we have experimented with that in Miami, and
" it didn’t work.

Mr. GiLMmaN. I would welcome if you had anything.

Mr. BErGESEN. We are working on it.

Mr. GiLmaN. We. realize this is a major loophole and a major
problem, with all of the small craft growing in numbers each and
every year, and the amount of trafficking across open water in-

.. creasing—that this could be a major source of importation.

Mr. BERGESEN. It:certainly could. We are working .on that and
hope to have a system developed soon to combat effective small
- craft smuggling.®

Mr. GiLman. We tightened up legislation treating the mother
ship and the smaller craft last year. I understand that has been

quite helpful. But we certainly would welcome some thinking on.
“how better to utilize our enforcement apparatus with the small
craft.

Mr. BErRGESEN. Why don’t we submlt to you somethmg in that
regard?

Mr. GILMAN We would welcome that. Thank you

Mr. DorNAN: Mr. Chairman, just one question.

If you were a drug smuggler, Mr. Bergesen, wouldn’t you say
that the prognosis for the future in this area is pretty bright for
smuggling?

Mr. BErRGESEN. I think it is more bright than dull.

Mr. ZerereTTi. Thank you, gentleman. Thank you very much

The committee will stand adJourned untll approximately 1:30.
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[Whereupon, at 12:40 p.m., the Select Committee adjourned to
1:30 p.m. of the same day.] s

AFTERNOON SESSION

Mr. ZereErRETTL. Rear Admiral Manning, welcome. Thank you for
taking the time out to come.

You can proceed, Admiral, in any fashlon you wish. Your entire
testimony will be made part of the record.

Proceed as you wish.

TESTIMONY OF ALFRED P. MANNING, REAR ADMIRAL, COM-
MANDER, 11TH COAST GUARD DISTRICT U.S. COAST GUARD

Admiral MaNNING. Thank you.

Good afternoon, Mr. Chairman; gentlemen.

I am Rear Adm. Alfred P. Manning, commander of the 11th
Coast Guard District. It is my pr1v11ege to appear as spokesman for
my service.

I have submitted a prepared, statement about the Coast Guard’s
general responsibilities and efforts in the enforcement of narcotics
laws here on the west coast. I intend to focus now upon the nar-
rower venue of southern California.

The flow of narcotics into the west coast market is a large one"

because the size of the market served is large. The problems of
interdicting that flow are many and complex.

Last year, this committee heard Rear Adm. Ben Stabile, Com-
mander of the 7th Coast Guard District, testify about operations in
the Southeastern United States. He discussed the presence of choke
points, a series of passes from the Caribbean Sea to the Atlantic,
through which seaborne drug traffic must pass on its way from
Central and South America to the markets of the east coast. The
choke points give focus to the smuggling routes and narrow the
field for interdiction.

There, .are no choke points in the Pacific, and -their absence
enormous’ly complicates our job. That task is complicated further

by the concentration of small craft in southern California. There

are over 300,000 pleasure craft alone, not counting commercial
craft. In consequence, the smuggler has the option of approaching

California from any point of the compass, and can readily blend in

with the other 1eg1t1mate traffic. Our drug interdiction effort has

grown but remains inadeguate. The cost of achieving an effective

level of effort will come high. /
In.its fundamentals, interdicting drugs at sea- does not differ

+ from the, techniques of naval blockade. There are three essihntlal-

ingredients: Surveillance; command, control, commumcamonc‘ and
intelligence; and response platforms.
Surveillance is the ability to detect, report and track vessels
moving toward the United States from areas where narcotigs are
staged for shipment north. In consideration of the area ,Wh1ch
surveillance should cover, I must tell you that my resources are
inadequate. I have no fixed-wing search aircraft permanenﬂy as-
signed; although I get my fair share of the hours aailable from the
Sacramento-based HC-180’s, that fair share is not enough.. Fu'ither—
more, the HC-130’s are limited in thelr effectlve,ness by an unsuit-
able electronics system:. /{r
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I have helicopters at San Diego and at Los Angeles which are
designed primarily for medium- and shcrt-range SAR. They are
poor surveillance aircraft, though we do use them as such. We also
deploy the HH-b2's with our larger cutters to create a highly
effective ship-helo team. Ly .

Fortunately, I have received some assistance from the U.S. Navy
in the form of aircraft support and radar data. USN ships also
report vessels of interest to us. : - ‘,

The U.S. Custéins Service provides many of its aircraft hours to
support our joint operations, and the Drug Enforcement Adminis-
tration does, also, within the limits of their aircrafts’ capabilities,

Command, control, communications and intelligence is what puts
everything together—the analysis of intelligence, development of
plans of action, and directing the forces in contact with the enemy.

We look primarily to others for intelligence, with heavy reliance
upon DEA, Customs and local law enforcement. agencies. We are

d

~ tied to EPIC, the intelligence center operated by DEA; and, thanks

to Customs, also to the Treasury law enforcement information
syfteml; The correlation of that information represents a monumen-
tal task. | : ‘

We use Coast Guard reservists extensively in the 'knalysis phase,

and use them in a role directly related to the skills required for
mobilization. The reserve unit concerned consists of veople who are
either law enforcement officers in their civilian lives or have had
active-duty experience in military intelligence.

The Coast. Guard must be part of a team if we are to achieve
success. I am particularly proud of ouy team here in southern
California. On the Federal side, Custon\\s, DEA, and the Coast
Guard are evolving the machinery through which to work closely
together. I have mentioned surveillance support, but that is only
one part. , ‘ i

I have both a Customs officer and a DEA agent on my staff.
Their initial task has been to identify areas where we can and
must mesh. As coordination is improved, the emphasis is shifting
to joint planning and joint operations. We have formalized the
relationships by memoranda of understanding with each of those
services. The Federal team is also improving cooperation with local
law enforcement agencies. Most recently, we have been working on
better coordination’ with the Los Angeles Police Department and
have gotten good results. o

Our most troubling weakness is secure communications, the abil-

ity to protect vital information and avoid revealing the location of

a transmitting ship or aircraft. Interagency communications links
also require significant improvement. R
Response platforms are the third leg of the interdiction tool, and
they are too few for the task at hand. My resources are limited to
one medium endurance cutter and eight 82-foot patrol hoats. In
addition, Commander, Pacific-area provides additional ship days
from other districts as they are available. .
A logical question is, {"How many larger ships do I need?”’ That,
of course, derives from the employment strategy used. The best
solution is to establish ajbarrier line running from the coast at the
United States-Mexican bdrder to a point roughly 760 miles‘or more
offshore. Assuming adequate aerial surveillance and helicopter-
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equipped ships, this strategy requires a minimum of two medium
or high endurance cutters deployed at all times. The strategy also
assumes correction of the communications shortfalis and good cor-
relation of all intelligence.

In the absence of needed rescurces, we seek to get the most
return from what we have. We cannot implement a barrier at this
time and must rely heavily upon intelligence and good fortune to
place us in the right spot at the right time. Statistics reflect the
weakness of this approach.

Some aspects of the drug war should be kept in mind.

First, the enemy has his own surveillance, warning, and intelli-
gence system. This has required us to make a massive internal

effort to refocus the attention of Coast Guardsmen on the impor-
tance of operational security. We have had to re-educate our people -
and change our physical plant to control access to sensitive spaces.

Second, we will, unless we are extremely careful, antagonize the
boating community. The key to minimizing disruption of lawful
pursuits lies in training—and that training is critically important.
We must avoid repetitive boardings of the same boat and:limit
them to vessels whose profile signals a reasonable possibility of
success. First-rate command and control is essential here.

Third, there is a marked correlation between the techniques of
drug interdiction and the Coast Guard’s wartime missions as one of
the Armed Forces. As we improve our law enforcement effective-
ness, the Nation receives a return on its investment through the
improvement of its forces in being in our coastal waters.

Mr. Chairman, thank you for the opportunity to make this pres-
entation. I am ready to respond to such questions as you may care

* to put. .

[Admiral Manping’s prepared statement follows.]
N .
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PREPARED STATEMENT OF ALFRED P. MANNING, REAR ADMIRAL, COMMANDER, 11TH COAST GUARD
DISTRICT, U. S. COAST GUARD )

0

Thi Coast Guard is the nqtiqn‘s primary maritime law enforcement agency
and is involved in ﬁany tynes of Taw enforcement Sucﬂ as Port Safety and Security,
Marine Environmental Protection, Commercial Vessel Safety and Recreat1ona1 Boating
Safety. - These programs are primarily the enforcement of regulat1ons vice cr1m1na1’
Taw enforcement and are concerned with safety and education.

The Enforcement of Law§éand Treaties(ELT) program is the offshore 1aw enforce-
ment program. Included in ELT is the Enforcement of the Fisheries Conservation and
Management Act (FCMA), general criminal law enforcement, the protection of offshore
assets, and drug law enforcement. whgie asset protection and general criminal
law enforcement occupy staff hours, the amount of time fhat patrol units engage
in such activities is estimated at Tess than 5%. In southern California there
are no foreign fisheries and domestic enforcement is handled dockside by the
National Marine Fisheries Service and the California Department of Fish and
Game. “All criminal law enfdrcement activities of the Coast Guard have several
elements in common. Each requires considerable involvemeﬁt with other law enforce-
ment agencies at the federal, state and Tocal level; is in an adversary role
with potential and actual v1o]ators, potent1al]y involves the use of force; and
p]aces Coast Guard forces within the marginal seas of the Upited States in areas

vital to National Security.
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In our Took at the Coast Guard's interdiction of narcotics and other dangerous

drugs on the West Coast and particularly in Southern California we must also Tlook

at the threat. The National Narcotics Intelligence Consumers Committee(NNICC)

estimates that the retail value of drugs supplied to the i17icit U. S. market
increased from a range of $42,150 - $57,430 million in 1978 to a range of $54,760-
$72,9%0 mi1lion in 1979. By far the bulk of these illicit drugs is imported into
the United States. This i1licit trade is made up of heroin, ¢ocaine, marijuana,.
hashish, and other dangerous drugs-however, the Coast Guard is most involved in
interdicting the bulk drugs of marijuana and hashish.

NNICC has estimated that 60% of the marijuana is being transported by sea

from the sotrce éountries. Most of this sea borne trade comes from Colombia.

The traditional routes from Colombia are on the East Coast through the Yucatan,
Windward, and Mona passages. However, in recent months there appears to be
This may be due to the increased Coast Guard
activity after the Cuban refugee operation; on-going Coast Guard-DEA-Customsv
enforcement operations; the current glut of marijuana in the Southeast; mandatory
‘sentencing under Florida State law for smuggling§ and 21 USC 955a, which makes
it i1legal to be transporting controlled substances on thé h{gh seas. Whatever
the reason is, the smugglers are now attempt%hg voyages on theiwest Coast of
three times the 1eﬁgth of the East Coast voyage. k

We have had reports that marijuana is being lcaded to sﬁugg]ers from small
vessels or by air drops aleng the Colombjan coast. This 1nform§4i0n is sparse
since very little intelligence emanates from this area. There are reports
that Costa Rica has become a trans-shipment point for marijuana and cocaine.
Mexico has also been Fnown as a trans-shipment area, though in receht months we

have seized Mexican marijuana at sea indicating it is also a shipper of marijuana

by sea.
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On the West Coast, the smugglers use all types of vessels. These include

‘motor vessels, fishing vessels, and sailing vessels. Motor vessels include

everything from freighters acting as matherships to small inflatable boats used-

to transport contraband to 7isolated beaches. Suspect fishing vessels are most

commonly in the range of 30 to 72 feet and sailing vessels are typically from 30

to 60 feet. Nearly half of the vessels that we suspect of smuggling into Southern

Califorina are sailing vessels and these vessels blend very nicely into the over

300,000 pleasure craft that ply these waters. Most of these vessels are used

for legitimate purposes when not smuggling.

Smugglers have also used barges to smuggle contraband. -One enterprising

group used harges that had.the characteristics of a submersible - that isy it

had a cargo compartment and a ballast compartment. The barge could be put.in

wet storage and be easily scuttled if necessary to avoid detection and capture.
The smugglers are becoming increasingly sophisticated in their operations.

Most of their vessels have extensive electronic equipment aboard of high quality

and generally superior to Coast Guard equipment. For loag-range.operations a .

smuggler may have satellite navigators and a proliferation of high quality radios.
They are supported by shoreside command posts including mobile Eommand.pnsts\in

motor homes paralleling their movements along the coast. )

We expect the smuggler to be using counter-surveillance. ye have no Gou
that Coast Guard vessel movements in and out of port are carefully mgpitored;,ﬁﬁgt

our communications are monitored for content and dl ection finding; and that
smugglers are using aircraft to locate Coast Guard vessels at sea. With their
extensive counter-surveillance and command organization they can guide their
vessels through or around the Coast Guard fleet. |

Within the Pacific Area are five Coast Guard Districts. iThey*are the Eleventh

District which covers Southern California and the watérs off the coast of Mexico;

tﬁgkiﬂglith District covers Northern California; the Thirteenth District includes
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the waters off Oregon, Washington, and Canada; the Fourteenth District takes in

Hawaii and the Hestern Pacific; and finally the Seventeenth District covers

Alaska.
As the. smuggler moves from the source or trans shipment countries to an

offloading spot along the West Coast of Mexico, the United States and Canada, he
s will transit from the Eleventh District to the Twelfth and finally the Thirteenth

District.
The Coast Guard &ttempts to surveil the areas where the smuggler maybe
transitting. We have examjned the tracklines of seized vessels to determine

the most probabie routes. We attempt to cover those areas, but have also

received information that the smugglers are extending their transits well out

t0 563 beyond those routes.

————Maritime-Sueveillance is best accomplished by aircraft. For surveillance

e T

well offshore, long range fixed-wing aircraft are needed such as the C~130's

from Coast Guard Air Statidn, Sacramento. Unfortuhate]y, there are only four
£-138's at Sacramento and they perform a variety of functions. During CY 1980,
Sacramento flew 974 hours for law enfowvcement(ELT). Of these hours 39% (379.5
hrs) were off Southern California, and 57% (551.3 hrs) off of Northe?n California.
The C-130's are hampered by’yhe lack of adequate electronics. The aircraft las
a weathey radar'dEG»is not very effactive for surveillance; and it lacks sebure
rcommunications capability. The C~130 is most effective when teamed with a Navy
-g“afféiaff:;*Tﬁé‘ELz aircraft locate the targets and vectors the C-130 in to
make a:bositive identification. Unfortunately, this combination has not been
“available as oftenvgs we would Tike due to certain resource Timitations.
For inshore surveillance the Eleventh District has three HH-3F Medium .
Range'Search and Rescue Helicopters at San Diego, and three HH-52A Sho;t Range
A Heli%opﬁers at Los Angeles. In the Twelfth District there are 3 HH-52A Helicopters
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at San Francisco and 2 HH-52A helicopters at Arcata.
Y

He]icopte; Law Enforcement Hours

~Eleventh District ELT Drugs ELT Fisheries ELT Other
CGAS San Diego(HH-3F) 107 83 5
CEAS Los Angeles(HH-52A) 232 43 7
Total 339 126 1z
Twelfth District
CGAS San Francisco(HH-52A) 105 13 9
CGAS Arcata(HH-52A) 12 51 110
Total 117 (13 19

In Southern California we are fortunate in that we get extensive surveillance
assistance from Customs. They will routinely launch their aircraft for urgent
cases and in conjunction with pre-scheduled operations. Customs flights are
generally limited to coastal areas since their aircraft do not have adequate
offshore navigational equipment.

Surveillance provides considerable information as to what vessels may be
moving and in what direction, but unfortunately, it is not constantly available.
Surveillance also means very little if there are no vessels to. interdict the
traffic. OnAthe West Coast, including Hawaii, we have eight 378;'Hamilton Class
High Endurance Cuttgrs. Most of their time is sbent patrolling the Fishery
Conservation Zone off“Alaska. The six 378' cutters on the west coast spent 596
hours on dedicated smuggling patrols off Southern Caiifornia and 198 hours
off Northern California during FY 1980. There is one additional high endurance
cutter, which is the CGC Campbell of World War II fame. This 44 year old 327'
vessel, un]1ke the Hamilton Class, is not capable of carry1ng he11copter¢. All
of the high endurance cutters are capable of sustained operations at sea. The

utilization of high endurance cutters is shown below. N
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Law Enforcement Utilization Data for the 378' High Endurance Cutter . {

Assigned to the West Coast FY 80

_Z Resource Hours
Employment Category 12th & 13th 14th PACAREA Tota]v
ELT Fish 8378 2600 10978
ELT Drugs ‘ 2707 0 2707
ELT Other 838 228 1066
Total Hours All 11923 2828 14751
Catégories

Also capab1e of offshore operations are three 210 foot Cutters of the RELIANCEClass,
one 213 foot fleet tug and two converted 180 foot buoy tenders. Of these, one ‘
210* cutter 1s Tocated in the Eleventh District and the converted buoy tender is
in the Twelfth District. The other 210 foot cutters are located well to the north
in the Thirteenth and Seventeenth Coast Guard Districts.

The, butk of the’inshore interdiction effort is handled by 95' and 82'
patrol boats and to a lesser exient by;41‘ utility boats from coastal stations.
In the Eleventh District there are eight 82' patrol boats plus one rotating spare.
The Twelfth District hastthree 95" patroT boats and five 82 patrol boats. , These
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